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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me are Committee Members Larry Seabrook,

          6  Helen Sears, Mike McMahon, Melinda Katz, Simcha

          7  Felder, Erik Dilan, and Al Vann. And we're also

          8  joined by, and we will be coming in by some of the

          9  Council members whose districts are included in the

         10  two applications that we have here. So, far we have

         11  Council Member John Liu. I know Council Member Jim

         12  Gennaro was here and will be back at some point.

         13                 The first item on the agenda was

         14  going to be West 60th Street, but that lies within

         15  Council Member Gale Brewer's district. She's running

         16  a little late, so we'll skip to the second item,

         17  which is Land Use Number 380, commonly referred to

         18  as the Queens Borough Hill rezoning, C070119 ZMQ,

         19  and I will call up Department of City Planning to

         20  make their presentation.

         21                 I know there were a number of people

         22  in the audience who are here to speak on this item

         23  and when we get to that point, I just want to make a

         24  couple of comments. First of all, if you're all

         25  looking at the official record of today's hearing,
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          2  the Queens Borough Hill Rezoning, as outlined in the

          3  booklet, is actually on the original application,

          4  the staff, unfortunately, did not put in the amended

          5  version. So, when you speak, you should let us know,

          6  are you in favor of the original application? Are

          7  you in favor of the amended application by City

          8  Planning, or are you against both or still

          9  recommending changes?

         10                 With that, John, it's all yours.

         11                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you for that

         12  clarification. And good morning, Chair Avella, Chair

         13  Katz, Council Members, ladies and gentlemen, I'm

         14  John Young, and I'm the Director for the Queens

         15  Office of the Department of City Planning. On behalf

         16  of City Planning, Director Amanda Burden, I'm very

         17  pleased to be here this morning to present the

         18  Department's proposal for the long-awaited update

         19  for zoning designations in the Queens Borough Hill

         20  community in North Central Queens.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: John, I hate to

         22  interrupt you, but I wanted to make one other,

         23  mention something else which I forgot to do.

         24                 Just for my Committee members

         25  information, on both items today we will not be
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          2  voting. We will do the public testimony on both

          3  items, and then we will schedule a vote before Land

          4  Use on Friday, time to be determined, some time

          5  during this hearing.

          6                 MR. YOUNG: That's all right. I'm

          7  joined by Mark Phillips. He is the project manager

          8  for the rezoning that's before you.

          9                 For this proposal, the Department has

         10  developed a carefully delineated rezoning strategy

         11  to address the particular concerns of residents

         12  regarding the area's development trends.

         13                 As we will explain, the Department's

         14  proposal seeks to curb inappropriate development

         15  that diminishes the community's built fabric, while

         16  ensuring that homeowners have flexibility to adapt

         17  their property to meet the needs of their families.

         18                 The rezoning proposal affects 105

         19  blocks centered in Queens Borough Hill, but also

         20  includes portions of the adjoining areas of Cedar

         21  Grove, Kissena Heights and Flushing on the Hill.

         22                 These North Central Queens

         23  Neighborhoods are exemplified by appealing

         24  residential streets with a mix of one- and

         25  two-family houses generally constructed from the
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          2  early to mid-20th century, but developed in a range

          3  of building types, including detached, semi-detached

          4  and row house structures.

          5                 The edges of the rezoning area are

          6  formed to a large extent by notable green spaces and

          7  cemeteries, including the Queens Botanical Garden,

          8  Kissena Park and Kissena Corridor Park to the north,

          9  St. Mary's cemetery to the east, Cedar Grove and

         10  Mount Hebron Cemeteries to the south, and Flushing

         11  Meadows, Corona Park to the West.

         12                 Yet, the area is also bisected by the

         13  Horace Harding Long Island Expressway and it houses

         14  or is adjacent to major activity generators,

         15  including New York Hospital, Queens in the center of

         16  the area, and Queens College just to the south.

         17                 Downtown Flushing is located one and

         18  one-quarter mile to the north. Queens Borough Hill

         19  and its adjacent areas are experiencing a housing

         20  construction boom that is based in large measure to

         21  their proximity to downtown Flushing, the LIE, and

         22  attractive open spaces.

         23                 Recent development trends have

         24  resulted in new housing that is increasingly

         25  inconsistent with the areas' established patterns of
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          2  development, typically single-family detached houses

          3  are replaced by semi-attached homes or

          4  multiple-family buildings, or in some instances,

          5  they are actually attached to much larger new

          6  structures.

          7                 The rezoning proposal seeks to

          8  protect the qualities and characteristics that make

          9  the area desirable. It has four-main objectives, and

         10  these are:

         11                 - to reinforce established patterns

         12  of building types, with density generally limited to

         13  one- or two-family -- to two-family houses;

         14                 - ensure that new development more

         15  closely matches the overall scale and front wall

         16  locations of existing homes;

         17                 - limit multi-family residential

         18  mixed-use buildings to primary corridors, such as

         19  Main Street and Kissena Boulevard; and

         20                 - prevent encroachment of commercial

         21  development into residential areas.

         22                 In order to achieve these objectives,

         23  the zoning proposal will replace zoning that

         24  generally dates to 1961, with new lower density or

         25  contextual districts.
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          2                 Within most of the area, and Mark

          3  will explain the proposal in detail, three existing

          4  zones, R2, R3-2 and R4, will be replaced with six

          5  new zoning districts, R2A, R3A, E3X, R3-1, R4-1,

          6  R4-B, whose boundaries have been carefully selected,

          7  to better reflect existing density and build

          8  character of various parts of Queens Borough Hill.

          9                 On Main Street and Kissena Boulevard,

         10  an R5B district is proposed to replace R4 zoning

         11  along these block fronts, to continue to allow

         12  multi-family and mixed use buildings at densities

         13  similar to current regulations, also new commercial

         14  overlays to reflect existing uses are proposed here,

         15  but the depths of new or current overlay locations

         16  would be limited to prevent encroachment of

         17  commercial uses onto residential streets.

         18                 At the City Planning Commission

         19  hearing, more than 50 persons spoke against the

         20  proposed R2 zone for two portions where it was

         21  proposed and against the R3X zone in three locations

         22  where it was proposed.

         23                 The concerns about the two R2A zones

         24  were in the areas east of Kissena Boulevard, between

         25  Booth Memorial Avenue and 59th Avenue, and East of
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          2  Main Street between 56th Road and 59th Avenue. In

          3  these areas the change would reduce the allowable

          4  maximum floor area ratio by 44 percent from .9 to .5

          5  FAR, an occupancy would be limited to single-family

          6  use only.

          7                 Concerns about R3X zones were in

          8  three areas located along 59th Avenue, between Main

          9  Street and Kissena Boulevard. In these areas the

         10  zoning change would reduce, the R3X would reduce the

         11  allowable maximum Floor Area Ratio by 33 percent,

         12  and occupancy would be allowed for single or

         13  two-family use.

         14                 The property owners in all of these

         15  areas desired additional flexibility for either

         16  allowing two-family occupancy, or expanding existing

         17  homes to allow for current or future family needs.

         18                 After careful review, the Commission

         19  modified the proposal in these locations to R4A

         20  zoning, to address these concerns, but this zone

         21  would still limit structures to detached types only,

         22  and keep the scale at the same 21-foot building wall

         23  and overall 35 foot heights as the R2A or R3X zones.

         24                 The Commission also modified the

         25  proposal to retain the existing depth of a C1-2
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          2  commercial overlay on Booth Memorial Avenue, East of

          3  136th Street. The original proposed change would

          4  have reduced the overlay depth from 210 feet to 150

          5  feet along this block front.

          6                 At the Commission's hearing a

          7  representative of the property owner noted that

          8  homes on this site had been raised, and that a

          9  community facility development was proceeding with

         10  lower level retail use.

         11                 The original proposed depth would

         12  have prevented lower store retail uses from

         13  encroaching on the former houses located there.

         14                 We are grateful to have been able to

         15  work with the areas very committed civic groups and

         16  residents in creating and refining this proposal.

         17  The rezoning plan has benefitted greatly from the

         18  input and leadership of the area's Council Members,

         19  John Liu and Jim Gennaro, as well as the Urban

         20  Planning Consultant Paul Graziano.

         21                 The proposal has received

         22  recommendations for approval from Community Board 7,

         23  and Queens Borough President Helen Marshall

         24  recommended approval with a request to City Planning

         25  to investigate the proposed R3X district on 138th
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          2  Street. The Department reviewed this area but found

          3  no new modifications to the proposal were to be

          4  recommended here.

          5                 We acknowledge the keen interest in

          6  the rezoning and the desire of many to have the

          7  public review process produce a sound rezoning

          8  strategy.

          9                 We hope you, too, will support the

         10  zoning proposal that seeks to protect and enhance

         11  the cherished neighborhood qualities of Queens

         12  Borough Hill, Cedar Grove, Kissena Heights and

         13  Flushing on the Hill.

         14                 Now Mark will present the rezoning to

         15  you and then we'll answer any questions you may

         16  have.

         17                 MR. PHILLIPS: Good evening, Council

         18  members.

         19                 I believe Mr. Young gave a very, very

         20  thorough introduction that covered the rezoning

         21  pretty much from beginning to end, so I'll just go

         22  and give the technical lines and rezoning.

         23                 I just want to go over real quick the

         24  handout that was passed out.

         25                 There is four pieces of paper, the
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          2  first one shows the existing zoning with Land Use

          3  patterns and building and development patterns. The

          4  second one shows the proposed rezoning as certified

          5  on October 10th by the Department, the third one is

          6  the CPC modifications as of January 24th, and the

          7  last one, while we're going through the zones, is a

          8  zoning comparison chart that shows existing zones

          9  and the proposed zones, so it's a little bit easier

         10  to follow along.

         11                 Currently, the 1961 zoning is still

         12  in place in the Cedar Grove neighborhood, between

         13  138th Street, Horace Harding Expressway, Main Street

         14  and 63rd Avenue is an R2 single-family zone, which

         15  only allows one-family detached home, however -- at

         16  a 0.5 FAR; however, the floor area exemptions for

         17  mechanical space and automobiles, as well as of

         18  maximum building height determined by the sky

         19  exposure plane can often result in out-of-scale

         20  homes that are typically known as "McMansions."

         21                 The remainder of the Cedar Grove

         22  neighborhood is zoned in R3-2 general residence

         23  district. This allows any type of occupancy and any

         24  building type from single-family detached homes to

         25  multi-family apartments at a 0.6 FAR with a 21-foot
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          2  perimeter wall and a 35-foot maximum building

          3  height.

          4                 The remainder of the rezoning area

          5  today is zoned R4. It's another general residence

          6  district with a higher FAR of 0.9 and a taller

          7  perimeter wall height of 25 feet.

          8                 In addition, on predominantly

          9  developed blocks, under R4, lot owners can use

         10  alternative infill provisions that provide an FAR of

         11  1.35, which can result in even larger out-of-scale

         12  homes.

         13                 In addition, as Mr. Young pointed

         14  out, along Main Street, Horace Harding and Kissena,

         15  we have some commercial uses and some mixed use

         16  residential and community facilities.

         17                 These you can see on the map in red

         18  and pink and we have commercial overlays in some

         19  areas: a C1-2, generally at a 150 foot depth that

         20  allows locally oriented retail and services that you

         21  would expect in most neighborhoods; on the north

         22  side of Horace Harding Expressway, between Parsons

         23  and 161st; on the western two block fronts along

         24  Kissena Boulevard, between 59th Avenue and Horace

         25  Harding Expressway; along the east side of Main
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          2  Street between Booth Memorial and Horace Harding;

          3  two block fronts on the west side, between 59th

          4  Avenue and Horace Harding; and one commercial known

          5  on the southeast corner of Booth Memorial and 136th

          6  Street.

          7                 There is also C2-2 commercial

          8  overlays, which allow more regional retailing

          9  services, including automotive uses and car washes

         10  which can often be disturbing to the neighborhood

         11  context, on the northern side of Horace between

         12  161st and 163rd, as well as a C2-3 commercial

         13  overlay at the intersection of the Van Wyck and

         14  Horace Harding, which is basically the same thing as

         15  a C2-2, it's over an existing floral shop.

         16                 I have here just four pictures of the

         17  kind of typical developments we're getting in the

         18  general residence districts that can really threaten

         19  one- and two-family neighborhood context that are

         20  very, very rich in the Queens Borough area. In fact,

         21  I forgot to mention, is that 96 percent of the lots

         22  in the zoning area are developed with one- and

         23  two-family homes.

         24                 The first picture here is in the

         25  Cedar Grove neighborhood at 136th Street and 62nd
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          2  Avenue. It's currently zoned R3-2, and you can see

          3  the owner develops two two-family semi-attached

          4  homes on a street that is mostly one- and two-family

          5  detached homes.

          6                 The second picture here is along

          7  Booth Memorial between 142nd and 146, it's currently

          8  zoned R4, in an area where there is mostly

          9  single-family detached, this is a new three-family

         10  apartment building.

         11                 The third picture is, I have to say,

         12  one of the best I have ever come across. It's in the

         13  same general area at 142nd and 59th. There is a two

         14  two-family -- a new two-family building directly

         15  attached to the existing single-family home, also

         16  using the 25 foot perimeter wall height of the R4.

         17                 Finally, in the same general area of

         18  our 146 and 59th Avenue we have a blow-out from an

         19  existing one-family structure to a three-family

         20  apartment building, using the 25 foot perimeter

         21  wall. You can see here in the picture the jarring

         22  juxtaposition between this kind of building and the

         23  one- and two-family homes surrounding it.

         24                 This map shows the rezoning as

         25  certified by the Department. Let me go through it as
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          2  quickly as I can. From the most restrictive, lowest

          3  density zones to the more permissive higher density

          4  zones. And before I do, I just really want to go

          5  quickly through the colors on the map so you can get

          6  a feel for what they're showing. This shows the Land

          7  Use and building type patterns that you see in the

          8  neighborhood, where the yellow to the brown spectrum

          9  shows residential development, yellow being

         10  single-family detached, as you can see here in the

         11  R2A zone. A light orange, that looks more like this,

         12  indicates two-family detached homes. A darker

         13  orange, that you can see here, shows one- and

         14  two-family semi-detached homes. A lighter brown like

         15  this shows one- and two-family row houses, and a

         16  very dark brown like this shows multi-family

         17  developments.

         18                 The pink and the red indicate mixed

         19  use, and commercial developments on Main Street,

         20  Horace Harding and Kissena Boulevard, and the few

         21  blue ones you see are large community facilities.

         22                 Most of the places where you see the

         23  light yellow and the light orange indicating one

         24  single-family detached, and two-family detached

         25  homes -- well, let me back track a little bit. Most
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          2  of the light yellow areas we see single-family

          3  homes, we originally proposed rezoning R2A.

          4                 This is one area in Cedar Grove,

          5  which was today, most of it zoned R2, between 61st

          6  Road, 138th Street, 63rd Avenue and Main Street.

          7  Another area around Booth Memorial Avenue between

          8  141st Street and 148th Street, and a third area

          9  centered around Parsons Boulevard, between 156th

         10  Street and 160th Street.

         11                 The R2A zoning would only allow

         12  single detached homes at a 25 FAR and 21 foot

         13  perimeter wall height and a 35 foot maximum height,

         14  thus having a tighter building envelope than the sky

         15  exposure plan allowed under R2, and would get rid of

         16  the R2 floor area exemptions.

         17                 It requires a 15 foot front yard with

         18  mandatory line-up with at least one adjacent

         19  property up to 20 feet, and generally results in

         20  two- to two-and-a-half story homes.

         21                 The next district we have is where

         22  you see mostly one single-family detached in the

         23  light orange indicating two-family detached. This is

         24  an R3X zone, between Horace Harding, 138th Street,

         25  and north of 64th Avenue in Cedar Grove. Another
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          2  pocket between 141st Street, 58th Avenue, 146th

          3  Street and 59th Avenue, along 59th Avenue between

          4  148th Street and 150th Street, and along 59th and

          5  60th Avenues between 153rd and Kissena Boulevard.

          6                 The R3X allows single- and two-family

          7  detached homes with the same 21-foot perimeter wall,

          8  35 foot maximum building height, at a 0.6 FAR. It

          9  requires a ten-foot front yard with the same

         10  line-up, and generally results in two- to

         11  two-and-a-half story, one- and two-family homes.

         12                 We have one more zone that allows

         13  one- and two-family detached, the R3A. Sorry.

         14  Between 155th Street, 59th Avenue, south of Booth

         15  Memorial to 163rd Street, and 100 feet North of

         16  Kissena Boulevard, or Horace Harding Expressway.

         17                 The R3A is also one- and two-family

         18  detached zone, like the R3X, but it has a smaller

         19  minimum lot width to reflect the fact of most of

         20  these houses are developed on narrow lots less than

         21  30 feet wide. It has the same 0.6 FAR as the R3X and

         22  the same front yard requirements. It generally is

         23  mapped in areas where we have one- and two-family

         24  homes on narrow lots.

         25                 The remainder of the Cedar Grove
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          2  neighborhood, where you see the darker orange

          3  indicating one- and two-family semi-detached homes.

          4  We proposed R3-1. It only allows one- and two-family

          5  detached and semi-detached. The same contextual wall

          6  heights. And requires a 15-foot front yard and 0.6

          7  FAR.

          8                 The next district that I want to

          9  review is R4-1. It's very similar to the R3-1.

         10  However, it allows the typical R4 FAR of 0.9, and we

         11  mapped this in as many areas as we could, West of

         12  Main Street, where we had a very, very strong one-

         13  and two-family context. West of Main Street and

         14  north of Horace Harding is a very mixed area. We

         15  have a lot of multi-family buildings. We focused on

         16  as many one- and two-families as we could.

         17                 We have one south of Elder Avenue,

         18  north of Booth Memorial, between 135th and 137th.

         19  Another area between College Point Boulevard, 58th

         20  Road, 57th Avenue, 136th Street, 59th Avenue and

         21  Horace Harding Expressway. Along 59th Avenue and

         22  60th Avenue between 134th and 137th Street, and then

         23  another pocket here in Flushing on the Hill, over

         24  five blocks between 61st Road and the Queens

         25  College, and a final pocket between Booth Memorial
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          2  Avenue and 59th Avenue, Kissena Boulevard and 157th

          3  Street.

          4                 In as many areas developed with

          5  single one- and two-family row houses, with

          6  rear-yard parking we proposed an R4B zone between

          7  58th Avenue and Main Street, 142nd Street and 59th

          8  Avenue, and another pocket around another area

          9  bordered by 148th Street, Booth Memorial, Kissena

         10  Boulevard and 59th Avenue.

         11                 The R4B allows one- and two-family

         12  homes of any configuration detached, semi-detached,

         13  or attached, with a 24-foot perimeter and maximum

         14  building height, at a 0.9 FAR and a five-foot front

         15  yard with the same line-up provisions that you find

         16  in R2A, R3X and R3A. These regulations under R4B

         17  typically produce or are mapped over areas of one-

         18  and two-family row houses, but it does not allow

         19  parking between the building and the street. We can

         20  only map these in areas that have parking in the

         21  rear yard, which explains not only why we propose

         22  the R4B for these areas, but why so much of the rest

         23  of the rezoning areas currently zoned R4 was not

         24  proposed for the contextual zone.

         25                 Most of these areas that you see in
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          2  white, R4, and developed with one- and two-family

          3  row houses with front-yard parking, and we do not

          4  today, we do not currently have a contextual zone

          5  that fits that treatment, or that development

          6  pattern.

          7                 Finally, as Mr. Young pointed out,

          8  along Main Street, Horace Harding Expressway and

          9  Kissena Boulevard, in areas where we have a lot of

         10  multi-family development and commercial uses, we

         11  wanted to retain the R4 infill FAR by using R5B. R5B

         12  is a low density general residence district that has

         13  a 30-foot perimeter wall height, 33-foot maximum

         14  height, five-foot front yard, with the line-up

         15  provisions and the 1.35 FAR. In this area it should

         16  just sustain the existing development pattern that

         17  we have today, but if there is redevelopment, it

         18  should also encourage a more contextual street wall

         19  and more predictable building heights.

         20                 We've also made some changes to

         21  commercial overlays in the area. Generally change

         22  rezoning C1-2 overlays to C1-3 overlays and reducing

         23  the depth from 150 feet to 100 feet in order to

         24  remove commercial zoning from adjacent residential

         25  properties.
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          2                 We also changed, rezoned the C2-2 to

          3  C2-3, reducing the depth from 150 to 100 feet, and

          4  placed new C1-3 commercial overlays. Today we have

          5  existing commercial uses that are non-conforming

          6  because they are not zoned for commercial use, and

          7  that is on the northeast corner of Kissena Boulevard

          8  and Horace Harding Expressway, the West Side of Main

          9  Street at Booth Memorial and -- sorry, Booth

         10  Memorial and Main Street, and Main Street between

         11  Booth Memorial and 58th Avenue.

         12                 That was the rezoning as certified by

         13  the Planning Commission, by the Department of City

         14  Planning, and in recognition of the issues brought

         15  up at the public hearing, the Planning Commission

         16  modified the proposal on January 24th. By first

         17  rezoning what was earlier proposed to be R2A and R3X

         18  north of Horace Harding Expressway to an R4A, which

         19  as Mr. Young pointed out, is a one- and two-family

         20  detached zone, which retains the existing 0.9 FAR

         21  but still has all of the same contextual building

         22  height controls and building envelope controls that

         23  we find in the R2A and R3X zones.

         24                 Also, in recognition of the fact that

         25  the residential properties which we currently -- the
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          2  residential properties at 136 and Booth Memorial,

          3  which were currently zoned C1-2, when we proposed to

          4  reduce the depth of the commercial overlay to remove

          5  the commercial zoning from those lots, in the

          6  meantime those lots have been raised and the

          7  developer intends to build a large community

          8  facility. So, the rationale behind the reduction is

          9  no longer there.

         10                 And this is the application as it

         11  stands before the Council today for review.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have one

         13  philosophical question, and then I'm going to call

         14  on Council Member John Liu and I think we expect

         15  Council Member Jim Gennaro to come in a few minutes.

         16  Then I'll take questions from Committee members.

         17                 City Planning, John, you and I have

         18  had this conversation before. You had an

         19  application, that you certified, went through the

         20  beginning of the public review process, went to the

         21  community board, went to the Borough President,

         22  which you believed in obviously, and then a number

         23  of people showed up at the hearing. How many people

         24  showed up in opposition to the application?

         25                 MR. YOUNG: At the Planning Commission
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          2  hearing?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          4                 MR. YOUNG: There were over 50 in

          5  opposition.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You took, you

          7  know, and I'm a big believer in the public hearing

          8  process, so you took those 50 people's

          9  recommendations and you made some changes; how many

         10  homes are in the areas that you changed?

         11                 MR. YOUNG: I believe it's 308, just

         12  over 300 homes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So I guess my

         14  philosophical question is, is even though we want to

         15  address, you know, the concerns of people,

         16  especially when they show up at public hearing,

         17  isn't there an inherent problem in 50 people show up

         18  and you change 300 homes, without going back to

         19  those homeowners and saying, listen, we've got a

         20  major issue? We saw it in the Littleneck Douglaston

         21  rezoning, now we see it here, I'm a little

         22  concerned. And I've mentioned this to you, and I

         23  think we have to have some further discussion about

         24  it, because let's assume the best case scenario, 250

         25  other people, other homeowners may support the
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          2  application, but they thought it was going ahead.

          3  So, I think we've got to be very careful when we

          4  make a major change based on a minority who show up

          5  at the public hearing.

          6                 I'm not saying that they're wrong,

          7  but, you know, there has to be some leeway to go

          8  back and ask those other people who may have thought

          9  the application was going ahead as originally

         10  intended.

         11                 MR. YOUNG: Council member, I think

         12  that's a reasonable basis for concern. I just want

         13  to enlighten you about some more details to the

         14  process of how the Commission reached its decision.

         15                 After the Commission's public

         16  hearing, there actually was a Town Hall Forum

         17  convened, actually with the assistance of Council

         18  Member Liu, which packed the auditorium at New York

         19  Hospital, Queens. We had over 200 persons, I'm

         20  surprised we didn't need the Fire Marshall to come

         21  in and monitor the occupancy of that room. And there

         22  was a lot of testimony focused on these particular

         23  areas, the R2A and R3X areas in that original

         24  proposed rezoning. So, actually based on that

         25  additional input in the discussion and we went back
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          2  and reported that discussion to the Planning

          3  Commission. And then the Commissioners themselves

          4  went through the area to closely look at each of

          5  these areas that were under their consideration now

          6  based on everything that had been reported to them.

          7  And then they arrived for that final decision.

          8                 That is a, I think a fairly

          9  deliberate process. Suddenly I understand your

         10  reason for being cautious and wanting to take

         11  further input perhaps.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Liu, and then I'll call on Council Member Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 I want to welcome my neighbors from

         17  Flushing. We have a large number of constituents

         18  here who are very concerned about the rezoning

         19  process that is about to take place. I just want to

         20  echo some of the concerns that have been voiced by

         21  the Chair concerning the process, and it's, you

         22  know, in your testimony, Mr. Young, you talk about

         23  the numbers of people who came to the City Planning

         24  Commission hearing. Much earlier than that is the

         25  notification process that we go through and this is
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          2  an issue that I've constantly had with the

          3  Department in terms of the way we notify people, how

          4  it's easy for us to send tax bills to homeowners and

          5  yet, when it comes time to notify people directly by

          6  mail of the rezoning process, for some reason the

          7  City just can't do that. And I know that that's

          8  beyond your scope, and yours, too, Mr. Phillips, but

          9  Mr. Chairman, and my colleagues, I think this is an

         10  issue where we do have to explore in the future when

         11  there are rezonings and law changes that are going

         12  to impact very directly on people's lives and

         13  livelihoods, that there be a mechanism to at least

         14  directly notify people about the proposed changes.

         15                 Now, with regard to this particular

         16  process, we have gone far beyond what is required

         17  right now under the Uniform Land Use Review

         18  Procedure. The Civic Associations, the City Planning

         19  Commission -- I'm sorry, Department of City

         20  Planning, myself, the community board, and all of

         21  the residents involved, we have had meetings far in

         22  excess of the number that is normally undertaken in

         23  this kind of process, and we're now to the point

         24  where the Community Board and the Borough President

         25  passed the plan that was originally certified by the
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          2  City Planning, the Department of City Planning, the

          3  City Planning Commission modified that somewhat and

          4  now I am going to advocate a change that will bring

          5  the proposal, that will retain most of what the City

          6  Planning Commission recommends, but bring certain

          7  key areas back to the proposal as originally

          8  recommended by the Borough President and Community

          9  Board No. 7.

         10                 And it is all with the intent, as was

         11  the intent of this rezoning process to begin with,

         12  to protect the residential integrity of these

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, if the need arises, I

         15  would like to speak a little further later, but I

         16  think that will suffice for now. Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I just want to

         19  make a quick mention before I call on Council Member

         20  Gennaro, that Council Member Gennaro actually has a

         21  bill in to mandate that the Department of City

         22  Planning notify all Land Use owners, homeowners,

         23  when we do a rezoning, and that is something that

         24  the Chair has supported.

         25                 We've had communications with the
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          2  Department of City Planning, that is something that

          3  needs to be done. I mean, there is no question about

          4  it. We've talked about it, it's about time that it's

          5  done without even having to pass Council Member

          6  Gennaro's bill. But we can send out, as Council

          7  Member Liu said, we could send out a tax bill, we

          8  can certainly let the homeowners know that there is

          9  a rezoning.

         10                 Council Member Gennaro.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman. I wish to be associated with the

         13  Chairman's remarks on the notification. But with

         14  regard to the zoning, I'd like to thank you, Mr.

         15  Young, and your team for working collaboratively

         16  with the Cedar Grove community. I represent the area

         17  of the rezoning which is south of the LIE, and I

         18  think the proposed rezoning achieves a very good

         19  thing for the Cedar Grove community, and I'm happy

         20  about it.

         21                 I will state for the record that in

         22  the last couple of days there has been an issue

         23  regarding a certain block face on 138th Street that

         24  was the western most portion of the previously zoned

         25  R2 area that eastern-most -- or that western-most
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          2  block face didn't make it into the R2A. I fully

          3  agree with the assessment of the Department of City

          4  Planning that that block face is not appropriate for

          5  the R2A designation and is much more suited to the

          6  R3X designation which it has in the proposal and

          7  that more than a third of the homes within that

          8  block face are multi-family and there are actually a

          9  couple of small apartment buildings among the 14

         10  properties that would take that. So, I fully agree.

         11                 Regarding the southern portion of the

         12  R2A designation and issue of service in the last

         13  couple of days on that, I did take a site visit

         14  yesterday and those three southern-most properties

         15  in the proposed R2A, which are south of 63rd Avenue,

         16  I think are much more appropriate for the R3-1

         17  designation than currently R3-2. I think the R3-1

         18  makes a lot of sense and I've made the

         19  recommendation to the Department of City Planning

         20  and to the Chairman and also the local community

         21  advocate who is most in favor of the R2A designation

         22  generally, you know, concurs that those properties

         23  are not appropriate for the R2A designation. So with

         24  that one minor change taking those three properties

         25  along 63rd Avenue from a proposed R2A to the R3-1, I
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          2  would be more than satisfied with this proposal.

          3                 So, I thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I

          4  thank you, Mr. Young.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I may ask, how

          6  does the City Planning feel about that one

          7  modification? Are those three homes, would they be

          8  complying with an R3-1?

          9                 MR. YOUNG: They would, it certainly

         10  would be a reasonable minor, as the Councilman has

         11  characterized, change to the proposal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, thank you.

         13                 Council Member Sears, and then

         14  Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair. Good morning. It's good to see you. I have

         17  one question and then a comment.

         18                 Do you have a master plan for the

         19  rezoning of the Borough of Queens? And I'll tell you

         20  why I ask that, I'm certainly not opposed to the

         21  rezoning, but we go through this with several

         22  different communities in the Borough of Queens, and

         23  I have great apprehension about those communities

         24  that are not doing it and that are still in their

         25  old zonings. Which means that it's happening in
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          2  Elmhurst and you know that, is that there is this

          3  push in these areas that have asked for rezoning and

          4  it's not happening, or they're coming and tearing

          5  down fiercely. So, what I see happening is that we

          6  take care of rezoning in some communities, and then

          7  we leave the other communities that are not rezoning

          8  most vulnerable to tearing apart a community.

          9                 It would seem to me that the City

         10  Planning Commissioner, Mr. Chair, would have a

         11  master plan and to look at each community with the

         12  community boards, and the elected officials in the

         13  area, and have a plan and start it. Because I think

         14  what we're doing is pushing into a corner those

         15  communities that are not rezoned, and I can see that

         16  we can begin to really stretch and tear apart those

         17  communities that are the way they are, and that's

         18  quite evident in western part of queens.

         19                 So, is there a plan, or are we doing

         20  knee-jerk reactions to tearing down these buildings

         21  and then putting a patch on it, while we at the same

         22  time are really working at, not intentionally, but

         23  just happening by the rezoning to tear apart other

         24  communities.

         25                 So, is there any plan in City
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          2  Planning that will look at the entire borough and

          3  where are you starting, where are you ending, and

          4  what are you doing? That's my question.

          5                 MR. YOUNG: Council Member Sears, I

          6  think that's a very important question, and we do

          7  have an overall strategy in undertaking the zoning

          8  for the entire Borough of Queens. Our strategy is

          9  overall trying to do transit-oriented development

         10  opportunities, and at the same time do a whole

         11  series of neighborhood zoning updates.

         12                 Obviously we're trying to prioritize

         13  areas that haven't had their zoning updated more

         14  than 45 years and we're trying to work closely with

         15  each of the community boards, local civic groups and

         16  the Council members and the Borough President's

         17  zoning task force to implement each of these

         18  important neighborhood studies that we've done.

         19                 Since 2002, more than two dozen

         20  communities have been rezoned and we have rezoning

         21  studies underway in nearly a dozen more communities.

         22  And the whole effort that we're trying to do is a

         23  very fine-grained approach. In doing this rezoning,

         24  we've just talked about a particular block front on

         25  63rd Avenue involving three properties, and in order
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          2  to do a very fine-grained detailed strategy we have

          3  to take the time and effort to do that in a very

          4  close examination. Doing it on a macaral level, the

          5  way they're doing it in 1961, clearly resulted in

          6  mis-matches. So, we are trying to roll out these

          7  studies, be as expeditious as possible, but at the

          8  same time, since we're not doing them every two

          9  years for every community, we want to do them in a

         10  way that actually is going to be effective for each

         11  particular component of that community. Fine-grained

         12  adjustments, rezoning using the best tools

         13  available, and if possible, the same time what we're

         14  trying to do is even create new tools. R2A zoning

         15  was developed particularly in response to issues

         16  occurring in Queens. So, all of our strategies are

         17  to effectively assess communities, effectively find

         18  that we have existing tools or where needed create

         19  new tools, but do it in a way that respects and

         20  responds to a particular community's needs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Forgive me. I

         22  understand that, but I have not seen anything,

         23  because there are areas in Western Queens that look

         24  to upzone, which may surprise some people, and there

         25  are other areas that are downzoning. If we're
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          2  looking at, we're so close, Flushing is very close

          3  to Corona and Jackson Heights, and I'm not aware

          4  that any of this downzoning has also been looked at

          5  in those communities.

          6                 I know that in parts of Corona you

          7  are reviewing it, and I don't know as anything

          8  happened with that. You cannot act with the speed in

          9  which this development is happening. That is a major

         10  concern, and I do think that when you have an

         11  isolated community, and Mr. Chair, I really mean

         12  that, it's a great concern of mine, we are in

         13  western Queens and you can hardly move. And when we

         14  have this kind of congestion, I would think that we

         15  would have a master plan, even if we were to

         16  regionalize Queens, and look at that so that we

         17  don't ease the discomfort of one community and then

         18  know that in the next three years the other

         19  surrounding communities are going to be butchered.

         20  It doesn't make sense to me. It doesn't make sense

         21  at all, and I don't think that that is the objective

         22  of City Planning, because I know better, but I don't

         23  see how we cannot take that in such a broad spectrum

         24  and work with it.

         25                 Because then when we look, and if it
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          2  was the reverse, if it was the reverse and you did

          3  this downzoning in communities of Corona, and if you

          4  did it in Jackson Heights, I would say the same

          5  thing for Flushing, because now we put a huge burden

          6  on Flushing to get into those areas where they

          7  haven't been rezoned, and would begin to butcher

          8  those communities. And I really have a big issue

          9  with that. I've said it before and I'll say it

         10  again, and I will tell you that I respect Councilman

         11  Liu, so I'm not talking about what your plans are

         12  and what you're doing for the community. This is a

         13  more global issue. And I think that we're beginning

         14  to butcher parts of Queens, and I don't see how we

         15  can let that happen.

         16                 And I think that we have to sit down

         17  and look at how we're going to do this.

         18                 MR. YOUNG: I would be happy to sit

         19  down with you. I just want to assure you that we're

         20  trying to serve all the needs of Queens. You

         21  mentioned Corona and Elmhurst, we've sat down with

         22  Community Board 4 and reviewed a strategic approach

         23  to doing an update for that entire community board

         24  which was already rezoned in 1990 using contextual

         25  zones. We've created newer contextual zones to even
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          2  more closely match the development. I will be happy

          3  to continue conversation and understand other areas

          4  that you think we should be taking a look at.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess I have

          8  more of a comment than a question.

          9                 I would say that, you know, as Chair

         10  of the Land Use Committee, I understand the

         11  importance of Councilman Gennaro and what the

         12  Subcommittee Chair is saying about notifying the

         13  communities of any rezonings, and I think it's a

         14  great idea. I truly do. And in the end, I think that

         15  we'll probably end up getting some form of that in

         16  the Council, and I think that's important.

         17                 But I don't want this moment to go

         18  buy without realizing that somehow in this

         19  particular case the system seems to be working. In

         20  other words, we had the hearing at the City Planning

         21  Commission, the community boards had the hearing,

         22  the Borough President had the hearing, now, and I

         23  know that Councilman Liu and Jim have been having

         24  meetings in their districts and talking to the

         25  communities regarding what they want. I know John
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          2  especially is talking about the R4A going into the

          3  R3X, and I know that he's been meeting with a lot of

          4  folks about that, and in the end this body here, in

          5  this Committee, is going to hopefully be able to

          6  modify it in response to what the community wants.

          7  Not everyone is going to agree, not everyone is

          8  going to disagree, some people will like it, some

          9  people might hate it. The point is that in the end,

         10  hopefully, we will get a rounded rezoning here that

         11  the Council members will approve of, that hopefully

         12  most of the community will approve of, and in the

         13  end City Planning has to approve it again, because

         14  it has to go back to them for scope.

         15                 So, I guess that was really just more

         16  of a comment than anything. I just didn't want this

         17  moment to pass without realizing that we are still

         18  being responsive to this community, and that the

         19  Council members have done their best to make sure

         20  that the community's voice has been heard in this

         21  process. Unless I'm wrong on that? They're trying

         22  their best? Totally on point, okay. I'm totally on

         23  point, finally.

         24                 But anyway, that's that. But I know

         25  that the City Planning Commission and us need to
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          2  still have discussions about what the Chair was

          3  talking about and what Councilman Gennaro was

          4  talking about as well, and I appreciate the moment

          5  to make that speech. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Liu.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman. And I certainly appreciate and understand

         10  the remarks of Council Member Melinda Katz, who is

         11  the Chairperson of our Land Use Committee.

         12                 My question for -- well, first, let

         13  me say that John Young and Mark Phillips, I mean,

         14  they have been working day and night on this, as

         15  well as many other rezonings, and so I certainly

         16  appreciate my distinguished colleague Helen Sears's

         17  comments, and we had the rezoning effort all

         18  throughout Queens and the City for the expressed

         19  content of preserving the residential quality of our

         20  neighborhoods. And I do have to vouch for at least

         21  these two guys that they really have been working

         22  extremely hard these past few years. So, I want to

         23  thank you, John, I want to thank you, Mark.

         24                 And I want to thank you for the

         25  original proposal that you put forth, that was
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          2  precertified in the City Planning, Department of

          3  City Planning. That proposal was passed by Community

          4  Board 7 and the Borough President, it was modified

          5  by the City Planning Commission. I do have some

          6  concerns about the way in which the Commission

          7  modified it.

          8                 And nonetheless, I do want to, Mr.

          9  Chairman, explicitly state that I am advocating for

         10  a change back towards the original proposal as

         11  passed by Community Board 7 and the Borough

         12  President, and that change from the City Planning

         13  Commission would be that the eastern most area that

         14  was originally proposed to be downzoned to R2A, but

         15  the Planning Commission had changed it to R4A,

         16  eastern most, right, that one I would advocate a

         17  change to R3X for that area. And in the more western

         18  area, Mark? Okay, now, that one is a little bit

         19  confusing because the bottom, the southern third of

         20  that was originally proposed to be rezoned R3X, I

         21  would go along with the City Planning Commission and

         22  recommend to you, Mr. Chairman, and our colleagues,

         23  that we keep that at the R4A recommendation by the

         24  City Planning Commission. But the northern

         25  two-thirds of that block, which was originally

                                                            43

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  proposed to be rezoned to R2A, but the City Planning

          3  Commission had changed the zoning plan to R4A, to

          4  bring that back to R3X, these changes will reflect

          5  the overall thought by the City Planning Commission

          6  of the fit of this rezoning plan for the entire

          7  area. It also reflects the wisdom that had been

          8  considered by the community board through its public

          9  hearings and the Borough President, and the original

         10  plan as proposed by the Department of City Planning.

         11                 And it addresses many of the concerns

         12  by the people in this room who I certainly can

         13  understand that they're not happy with any of this

         14  rezoning, that many of the people had said very

         15  publicly, that they would like the opportunity to

         16  have a two-family home instead of a one-family home.

         17                 Going all the way to 2A, R2A would

         18  have restricted them from building anything more

         19  than the single-family home that they currently live

         20  in. On the other hand, R3X will give them a great

         21  deal of flexibility in having a two -- with the

         22  ability to convert their single-family homes to a

         23  two-family home in the future.

         24                 So, with that I rest, Mr. Chairman.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any comments,

          3  John? No? Okay. You don't have to.

          4                 If there are no other questions from

          5  my colleagues, we'll move to the public hearing

          6  aspect of this item.

          7                 First I'd like to call on Eugene

          8  Kelty, Chairperson of Community Board 7.

          9                 Would the Sergeant-At-Arms start to

         10  set up the clock.

         11                 MR. KELTY: Okay, good morning,

         12  Council members. My name is Gene Kelty, Chairman of

         13  Community Board 7.

         14                 I came down to testify, I'm sorry I

         15  don't have written comments, it's just to kind of

         16  tell you how the Community Board's thought process

         17  was, and the process that we currently hear, and why

         18  there is a large crowd behind us.

         19                 We had numerous meetings on this. I

         20  don't mean to be adversarial, I don't mean to be

         21  disrespectful to anybody, but the Board would like

         22  to see the original request that went from the

         23  original Board.

         24                 I know what Councilman Liu said, but

         25  we still would like to see the R2A where it's

                                                            45

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  supposed to be, the R3X's where they're supposed to

          3  be. It's not like something was done in a vacuum.

          4  This zoning issue has been going on for years. We

          5  have -- when we did the actual public hearing, the

          6  notices were put in the local paper, we put in the

          7  local Asian paper, that were publicized in stores,

          8  as currently one of my Community Board people will

          9  tell you, it's still up in the store. It was not

         10  done in a vacuum. I sit there and I reprimand the

         11  public, every Community Board, Community Board

         12  meeting to tell them to be part of a civic

         13  association, a business association. I agree 100

         14  percent with the Council that we can fax bills out

         15  and we should send notices out to the other thing.

         16  If we don't want to pay the 39 cents, then let's

         17  send a post card out, but at least somebody would

         18  know about it and we would get everybody. So, I

         19  agree with it.

         20                 I'm just trying to tell you how the

         21  thought processes went. After our hearings that we

         22  took the vote on, the next meeting we had, you'll

         23  hear some of the people probably come up and speak

         24  to you, and that was done and we told them the

         25  process that was due. They were not given any
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          2  misinformation. We told them the next process was go

          3  to the Borough President's office, the next one was

          4  to go to City Planning, the next one was to come to

          5  the City Council. There was foresight to let them

          6  know that there was reprieve to go out there and

          7  they could override the Community Board's

          8  decision,'cause we're only advisory. We still

          9  believe the R2, and I'm not into the zoning myself,

         10  I have three zoning people on my Board that I give

         11  that Committee to, Chuck Apelian (phonetic), who is

         12  the co-chair, with Arthur Barrigan (phonetic), who

         13  is on our Board at least 30 years and has been

         14  handling it, and the other one we have is Frank

         15  Mackio (phonetic), where he is a developer on one

         16  side, a small contractor, he still sits on the Board

         17  with an open mind to balance out the situation. So,

         18  there's always a good foresight that goes into when

         19  we represent a zoning issue.

         20                 When I spoke to them, they reiterated

         21  what we said is that the area that's currently zoned

         22  R2A, that Council Member Liu wants to recommend for

         23  the R3X, about approximately 80 percent is

         24  one-family homes. You are changing the character of

         25  the neighborhood.
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          2                 I understand the people behind me. I

          3  understand that they want to have the ability to

          4  build a second story on it, but is that what the

          5  actual concern is? Or is the concern to build and

          6  move?

          7                 The Community Board has been beat up

          8  over the head year after year after year about

          9  zoning issues. I have to go after the former

         10  Administration, the Giuliani Administration did not

         11  move forward with the zoning issues. They sat, they

         12  wouldn't move forward with them. Under the new

         13  administration we had more zoning applications that

         14  tried to balance the scale on it and we were very

         15  happy with it. City Planning has done an outstanding

         16  job. They have outreached. They have gone out into

         17  the community, they have looked at the houses.

         18  Nothing was done with a frivolous attitude. And I

         19  have to thank the Queens City Planning for that.

         20                 All I can tell you is, if we change

         21  it from an R2 to an R3, I give the privilege of

         22  which why they were in the area to build a second

         23  story or a two-family house. If most of the area is

         24  a tudor one-family house, you will specifically

         25  change that nature of that community. And my feeling
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          2  is, for those that don't know, and I have to tell

          3  you my history, my family came from Queens Borough

          4  Hill, we lived on 136th Street, right off of Booth

          5  Memorial Avenue. There was two-family houses in that

          6  area that were two families for those who could

          7  afford it, and those that couldn't bought one-family

          8  houses.

          9                 With the introduction of everybody

         10  being one with the zoning, developers and people now

         11  are looking to make a profit. The Community Board

         12  has to balance the scale and say what is good for

         13  the community, what is a planning for the community,

         14  and my feeling that I've gotten from my Board

         15  members and the local civic groups is that we want

         16  people to stay. We're not here for them to design

         17  and make a profit and move out. I'm sorry, that's

         18  not what the Board was put in place for. We were

         19  here for planning. We planned for developers to come

         20  in, we have four major issues that are going on, we

         21  have the RKO, we have Queens North, we have the

         22  municipal parking lot -- I can't think of the other

         23  one it is, but we concerned ourself, and in each one

         24  we went down to the Board of Standards and Appeals,

         25  we said the same thing. We stood with the developer
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          2  on one side, we stood against the developer on the

          3  other side.

          4                 Now it comes to the residential and

          5  the people looking to make a profit, and that

          6  worries me because the Board wasn't designed for

          7  people to change the zoning to make a profit and

          8  move on.

          9                 The idea is we want you to stay, we

         10  want you to put your family here. You have to built

         11  a dormer, yes, we're more in favor of that. If you

         12  want to put an extension on the back of the house,

         13  we're more in favor, we're willing to go to Board of

         14  Standards and Appeals and fight the issues in saying

         15  it's minimum variance. I'm not here for the person

         16  to knock this house down, put a two-family house and

         17  the next thing they're moving out to Long Island or

         18  to Florida and then tell me the neighborhood is

         19  changing. I think if one more person says that to me

         20  I'm going to leap up and strangle them, because I'm

         21  so tired of them telling me the neighborhood is

         22  changing, as they took their suitcase full of money

         23  and traveled out to Florida or to Topeka, Kansas. I

         24  have lived here all my life. My grandfather built

         25  the house in 1939, and I'm still there. And I'm five
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          2  minutes from the airport, I'm still paying taxes,

          3  but you can't beat the taxes in Queens. I have a

          4  two-door garage, I park my car in my driveway. I am

          5  now being (sic) a parking lot, that's what the

          6  Community Board, that's all we hear is parking

          7  issues and stuff like that. You put two families in

          8  that area, you can't park there now. We just did a

          9  whole rezoning for street one-way scenarios over

         10  there to help them out, and now you're going to say

         11  to them, let them have a green light to put a

         12  two-family house in, and I guarantee those people

         13  will sell, get rid of their one-family house, get a

         14  nice profit and I'll have developers going in and

         15  building two-family houses for sale, because it

         16  currently is being done. One of my Board members

         17  that is coming up to testify will tell you her and

         18  my Chair of my zoning went out after these people

         19  came to us, went around the area and found that

         20  houses are being knocked down already and there is a

         21  for sale sign on the property going in with a

         22  two-family house.

         23                 I know how the Council member feels,

         24  and I don't mean to be in opposition with him. I

         25  think that he is absolutely right because we were
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          2  ready to move forward, he stopped us, asked us to

          3  have another meeting in my auditorium, of which not

          4  200 people showed. Again, a handful of people

          5  showed. He was there with John Young, explained the

          6  situation over and over again. My answer is somebody

          7  woke up, saw that there is profit to be made here,

          8  put notices all over. I got them all started and now

          9  everybody behind me is going to be selling their

         10  house moving for a two-family house because somebody

         11  said there is a lot of money to be made here.

         12                 I want people to stay here. We want

         13  them here. They're the backbone of the residential

         14  community. They put money back in. We want the

         15  families. We want the kids playing. I don't not want

         16  to see development that ruins the area. That's what

         17  I'm here to tell you. That's how the Community Board

         18  was looking at it, and that's how we went down there

         19  -- I don't want to get into R3's, 5's, something

         20  like that, that was the concept of how the Board

         21  looked at the application, that is how we've looked

         22  at each application, College Point that you did for

         23  us and Whitestone. In each case you sent the notices

         24  out, out of your personal money to let your

         25  community know about it.
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          2                 I cannot tell you how many notices

          3  have gone out on this. I cannot tell you how many

          4  papers we've done that we sent this out. You had to

          5  be living in somewhat of a vacuum, not paying

          6  attention about what was going on. This zoning has

          7  not just popped up. You can ask the former President

          8  of the Queens Borough Hill, it's going on for 12

          9  years. For the last four or five years it has hit

         10  the thing, and Councilman Liu has been sending

         11  notices, have been publicizing and stuff, and I do

         12  understand these people behind me and that's why I'm

         13  glad to be here, because we wanted to make sure we

         14  did have the due process that's involved in. I just

         15  want you to understand how the community board

         16  looked at it and that was the reason for we still go

         17  to the original agreement that goes back to the R2

         18  and the R3X.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Gene.

         20                 Before we call on Council Member Liu,

         21  who has a question, you said something that I've

         22  actually said to City Planning about this

         23  application, in reference to the R2A area. I agree

         24  with you. If, in effect, we make this a two-family

         25  zone, it's going to be two families in a matter of a
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          2  year. We're actually finding that happening in the

          3  Whitestone rezoning in the areas that were R3-2 that

          4  were made R3A. The remaining one-family houses are

          5  disappearing incredibly fast.

          6                 So, people should just know that if

          7  we don't make this R2A, we make it R3X or R4A, you

          8  can kiss the one-family homes good-bye because the

          9  development pressure will just take over.

         10                 So, I agree with you in that respect.

         11                 MR. KELTY: I agree. Again, I know

         12  people are there to make a profit. I'm not here to

         13  stop them on it. But my feeling is we want them in

         14  this community. I don't want to see people moving

         15  out and then it just becomes speculation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         17  Liu.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 Gene, thank you. With all due

         21  respect, I've got to ask you to stop broad-brushing

         22  people. You know, there is no -- I don't have any

         23  question in my mind that in those areas that were

         24  originally proposed to be R2A, if we make it R3X or

         25  R4A, that those will become two-family homes. That
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          2  is already the trend today, because the people there

          3  would like to have that flexibility. But I don't

          4  think we should be saying that while everyone is

          5  just going to sell their homes, and convert it to a

          6  two-family home and sell it and leave the

          7  neighborhood. I think a lot of the people who spoke

          8  at the public meetings that were held in Flushing

          9  expressed a very sincere desire to stay in the

         10  neighborhood, but want to have the flexibility of

         11  converting their single-family homes to two-family

         12  homes in the future, not intending to sell it or to

         13  make speculative profit. They want that flexibility

         14  that they always understood was part of their

         15  flexibility but now is being curtailed, extremely if

         16  we go with the two-way, or curtailed significantly

         17  if we go with the 3X or the 4A.

         18                 So, I think we can all disagree on

         19  the rationale and the impact of rezoning, but it

         20  would be better if we express our individual

         21  opinions and not categorize an entire group of

         22  people who happen to be for the rezoning or an

         23  entire group of people as being against the

         24  rezoning, in a way that only recognizes a negative

         25  motivation behind what they're advocating for.
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          2                 MR. KELTY: I appreciate your comment

          3  but I disagree with you. Okay, I saw it in

          4  Whitestone, and we had one application in Flushing,

          5  that as we were trying to get I think it was the

          6  College Point, the person was ripping open the

          7  ground and trying to get his foundation --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: There is no --

          9                 MR. KELTY: Councilman, I agree with

         10  you, your decision, I agree with you, but I don't

         11  think I'm broad stroking anything. I think I'm being

         12  very realistic in it. I've been there 52 years. I am

         13  old, I've been on the Community Board 24 years, and

         14  I see demographics changing drastically.

         15                 I'll concede that I'm using somewhat

         16  of a broad stroke, but I'm telling you, I see

         17  developers coming in, and I'm going to tell you

         18  this, I get the financial bill from my house. I

         19  think I'm up almost $750,000. I want to run out,

         20  take that money, and move out and I think my mother

         21  would leap out of the grave and strangle me, because

         22  she said we bought the house to live in the

         23  community, and those notices constantly encourage

         24  people to say this is a very profitable house, it's

         25  time to move on.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Sorry, Gene,

          3  you're not leaving. We're not letting you leave. But

          4  in any event, look, are there examples of people who

          5  just want to sell their property and make a profit?

          6  Of course there are examples, but we should not

          7  assume that to be the motivation of the mass of

          8  people. In fact, I believe that the mass of people,

          9  including the great majority of the people who are

         10  here to speak in opposition to the rezoning, will

         11  have the motivation of wanting to stay in these

         12  neighborhoods, and in this particular neighborhood,

         13  and to allow their families to grow and to grow

         14  together. And there's nothing wrong with that.

         15                 MR. KELTY: I'm not arguing there is

         16  anything wrong with it, and I'll tell you,

         17  Councilman, I would hope I'm wrong, okay? But I

         18  don't think I am.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Gene.

         20  In any event, you're not leaving.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 MR. KELTY: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         24  Felder.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 I just wanted to echo somewhat what

          4  my colleague, Council Member Liu has just discussed.

          5  This problem is not specific to this area, it's a

          6  problem, if you want to call it that, or an issue, I

          7  would say, rather, that that is affecting many

          8  neighborhoods. Many neighborhoods. And as a former

          9  Chair of the Landmarks Committee, I would say that

         10  there are properties, there are neighborhoods that

         11  are landmarked. Now, a landmark means that that

         12  neighborhood must remain exactly, or at least very

         13  close to the way it exists.

         14                 If a property or a neighborhood is

         15  not landmarked, then that means that that property

         16  may change over time, and the issue of what the

         17  integrity or the flavor of a neighborhood is changes

         18  over time, because 50 years ago, 75 years ago, some

         19  of the neighborhoods that exist today were not what

         20  they were before. I mean, the neighborhood I live in

         21  was farms at one time, and if we would have had a

         22  hearing at that point somebody would have said that

         23  they prefer having cows, you know, roam the fields

         24  rather than homes that are -- and it's changed.

         25                 So, I would just say that I don't
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          2  think -- I think it's a very difficult balance to

          3  say you want to maintain a neighborhood and yet at

          4  the same time allow people, for example, in

          5  neighborhoods that I represent, Bensonhurst, and

          6  Midwood and Borough Park, where people have larger

          7  families, I would assume, I shouldn't assume, I'm

          8  telling you as a fact, there are a lot of people

          9  that are very upset about the fact that there are

         10  one-family homes that are being ripped down, and two

         11  or three families under the current zoning that

         12  exist being put up. That doesn't mean it's a bad

         13  thing, and that doesn't mean that everybody likes

         14  it. I don't see the contradiction. And if in fact,

         15  if in fact somebody decides that they want to build

         16  a home to make sure that they are able to keep

         17  family and certainly in many cultures people live in

         18  the same homes, parents and children, I was

         19  fortunate enough that my parents did not allow me to

         20  move into the same house. I don't want to discuss

         21  why, but in many cultures that's the case, that

         22  families live with children in the same homes, and

         23  if this gives them the ability to do so in a

         24  balanced fashion, then I think that that's the way

         25  neighborhoods flourish, and there's no way to make
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          2  everyone happy.

          3                 So, I disagree entirely, I should say

          4  -- not entirely, why should I disagree with you

          5  entirely, I don't even know you, but I disagree very

          6  much because you've mentioned a number of times

          7  about people buying homes. I've had those issues,

          8  and if you don't want to sell the homes, don't sell

          9  the homes. If they change the zoning and there are

         10  people living in those homes, no one is forcing

         11  anybody to sell. Most of the people that do sell

         12  homes, that have one-family homes, like to make a

         13  good killing on what they're getting and move to

         14  Long Island. We're not encouraging them to do it. No

         15  one is forcing them to do it, to have people be able

         16  to have those properties, have their relatives live

         17  there, and most of the people that are moving into

         18  those places, I would disagree with you, without

         19  even knowing the neighborhoods, because it's similar

         20  to the reasons that we have in our areas where the

         21  people want to stay there for schools, for houses of

         22  worship, family, and they stay there, and there will

         23  be exceptions to the rule where people come in and

         24  rip it down. But, you know, I have great confidence

         25  in the Council members that represent those
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          2  neighborhoods, that represent you and the people

          3  there, even though in this case he disagrees with

          4  you, but he represents you anyway, you're paying his

          5  salary, that Councilman Liu and Councilman Gennaro

          6  will be able to strike up that balance.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

          8  questions, Gene, thank you for your testimony.

          9                 MR. KELTY: Thank you, Council

         10  members. I appreciate the courtesy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The first panel I

         12  will call will be Kim Ohanian, Walter Kewsh, June

         13  Muc and Nora Erhardt.

         14                 And I'm going to start the clock, so

         15  I would appreciate everybody sticking to the time

         16  frame. I obviously don't cut people off exactly at

         17  the two minutes, but try and fit it in, and try and

         18  not repeat the same things that the previous person

         19  spoke about.

         20                 We do have quite a number of speakers

         21  on this subject.

         22                 MS. OHANIAN: Thank you. My name is

         23  Kim Ohanian. Good morning, Chairman Avella, esteemed

         24  Council Members, ladies and gentlemen. I come to you

         25  today as the recent past President of the Queens
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          2  Borough Hill Neighborhood Association, and member of

          3  Community Board 7, and a resident of Queens Borough

          4  Hill for 43 years. I urge you to support the plan as

          5  it was originally certified by City Planning. This

          6  rezoning proposal was presented to City Planning 15

          7  years ago, when I went and met with them to get it

          8  restarted four years ago, they actually found the

          9  survey that I conducted 11 years prior. And this

         10  rezoning was begun 15 years ago at the request of

         11  neighbors who were fed up with over-development with

         12  people purchasing homes, tearing them down, putting

         13  up these ugly monstrosities, and then leaving. They

         14  were -- we were asked by City Planning about a year

         15  and a half ago to conduct a survey of the proposed

         16  R2A and R3X areas. When we did what they asked, we

         17  submitted these surveys to them, we receive 97

         18  responses and 93 out of -- I'm sorry, 94 out of 97

         19  responses requested the R2A designation.

         20                 City Planning and the Queens Borough

         21  Hill worked for many years to come up with this plan

         22  that would ensure growth, as well as preserve and

         23  protect the character of the neighborhood.

         24                 Mayor Bloomberg stood on the steps of

         25  Queens Borough Hall and pledged to help us do just
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          2  that. I urge you to continue that fight.

          3                 The original plan overwhelmingly,

          4  overwhelmingly had compliance for the R2A and R3X

          5  designation. It wasn't just a third or two-thirds,

          6  it was more than three-quarters.

          7                 I'm sorry, do I get to finish?

          8                 If we approve the proposed changes to

          9  the R4A, there will be no more one-family homes. The

         10  character of the neighborhood will be lost, and the

         11  infrastructure will suffer dramatically.

         12                 City Planning developed and certified

         13  the plan that was presented to Community Board 7

         14  which they approved. It was then presented to the

         15  Borough President's Office, which she approved. I

         16  urge you to put this plan back to the original

         17  certified plan, and pass it as it was intended.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sorry, stay

         20  there just in case there are questions. We'll get

         21  through the whole panel, and then just in case there

         22  are questions.

         23                 Ma'am go ahead. I'm sorry.

         24                 MS. ERHARDT: It's quite all right.

         25                 Good morning, gentlemen. My name is
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          2  Nora Erhardt. I live in the Cedar Grove section of

          3  Queens Borough Hill. My home is located in the area

          4  bounded on the north -- on the south by 61st Avenue

          5  and on the north side, on the east side, 138th

          6  Street. This particular group of homes, which

          7  obviously is about 14 homes, we have been taken out

          8  of the R2 and put into the R3X. Why has this

          9  particular row, or block, one block of several

         10  houses, been changed and put into the R3X when the

         11  rest of the area surrounding by 61st Avenue and

         12  138th Street is still R2A?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you just

         14  quickly point to the area on the map from there?

         15                 MS. ERHARDT: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You have to speak

         17  into the microphone. So, do that and then come back

         18  to the microphone.

         19                 You're talking about the one-block

         20  strip that faces 138th? So, you're talking about

         21  that section, okay.

         22                 Okay, Ma'am, sit back and talk into

         23  the microphone.

         24                 MS. MUC: Good morning, members of the

         25  Council. I'm grateful to you for allowing me to
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          2  speak. My name is June Muc. I am a resident of the

          3  Cedar Grove area for 40 years. I'm very pleased with

          4  this area. My children, my family have gone to the

          5  local schools, they've all left. I would like to

          6  retain the residential integrity, as Councilman Liu

          7  said, and not have add-ons put into these

          8  semi-attached houses. If we can take the zoning text

          9  amendment to R30, all the people on my block would

         10  be very pleased and happy. And that's what I would

         11  like to see, for the community to remain the way it

         12  is so we do have parking, so that I, as a senior

         13  citizen, don't have to fight somebody for a handicap

         14  spot in the one and only supermarket that's

         15  available, as the area would become congested, even

         16  that would not be available to me.

         17                 Thank you so much.

         18                 MR. KEWSH: Walter Kewsh, President of

         19  the Cedar Grove Civic Homeowners Association.

         20                 First I'd like to say that there has

         21  been no public meeting in Cedar Grove. We usually

         22  have one at the VFW Post and that should have been

         23  held in this matter.

         24                 Secondly, I want to say I was lied to

         25  at CB 7, primarily by Chuck Apelian (phonetic), who
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          2  said that once this went to City Planning on October

          3  2nd or 3rd, there could be no changes made.

          4                 At that point during the zoning

          5  committee meeting at CB 7, it was agreed upon that

          6  the 138th Street corridor should be put into R2A.

          7  That's that area that we've just pointed out, plus

          8  this area that continues south between 63rd Avenue

          9  and 64th Avenue on both sides of the street. They

         10  are single-family homes.

         11                 I'm glad to see that John Young of

         12  DCP has studied the R3X area and R2A area

         13  controversy at the behest of the Borough President.

         14  That means that you people can modify his work.

         15                 First, we need in that area an R30

         16  zoning text, which will allow, be similar to the

         17  R3-1 in technical details, except that it would

         18  restrict development to one-family semi-detached

         19  homes, so that homes such as the one I live in and

         20  the one next to it, could not be modified to be a

         21  two-family home. My neighbor has done that, and it's

         22  horrendous.

         23                 Now, the R2A family situation that we

         24  have here, people who are on that zone can of course

         25  get a multi-family home built simply by going

                                                            66

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  through ULURP and the BSA. And what the difference

          3  was, that there would be public process, and it

          4  would enable us to speak out against it.

          5                 Finally, I want to talk about the R2

          6  area that exists, plus the R2 area that did exist,

          7  the R2A area. I've done a very simple chart, as you

          8  can see here, bar chart using Excel, and basically

          9  what it is, is it shows that when you combine the R2

         10  area that's been left out back in, it becomes just

         11  as normal as any of the R2A areas that were

         12  suggested by City Planning in the other areas of

         13  Queens Borough Hill rezoning, which I referred to as

         14  North Queens Borough Hill and the Kissena Heights

         15  area.

         16                 If you just look at those 14 houses,

         17  there's only 13 percentage points between the median

         18  -- between the mean number of houses necessary to

         19  be considered an R2A area in that area. If we want

         20  to cut it even finer, as Sweeny Todd said, we can

         21  cut out that one block that has the two multi-family

         22  homes in it, and it will more than equal what the

         23  current situation is of about 81 percent of

         24  non-two-family -- non-single-family homes necessary

         25  to encompass as an R2A area.
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          2                 Finally, I'd like to say thank you,

          3  and I'd also like to say that this is an ongoing

          4  process, which we will continue to participate in,

          5  not just one meeting.

          6                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          8  Council Member Gennaro has a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 I just wanted to, I guess in order

         12  I'll speak to Nora first. You posed a question as to

         13  why the 14 properties along the east side of 138th

         14  Street from 61st Road down to 63rd Avenue were not

         15  included in the R2A because those 14 properties

         16  taken as a whole, there are, as you well know, five

         17  properties of the 14 that are already at least

         18  two-family homes, and three of the properties are

         19  actual apartment buildings.

         20                 No, I was there. I mean, I've walked

         21  it many, many times, but just to clarify it crystal

         22  and in my mind, I went to the neighborhood yesterday

         23  and walked those blocks and looked at every single

         24  of the 14 properties and I must say that I agree

         25  with the Department of City Planning's assessment
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          2  that that block face is much more appropriate for

          3  R3X than it is for even R2, like let alone R2A. And

          4  those properties, all 14 of them, of course face,

          5  you know, 138th Street where the rest of the R2, the

          6  rest of the R2 proposed areas front on the east/west

          7  street. And I think that the Department of City

          8  Planning has made the right call here, and if you

          9  have five out of 14 properties that are not in

         10  conformance with the R2A or even R2, it's too much

         11  of a, you know, contrived situation to try to have

         12  those block faces part of the R2A. So, I simply

         13  agree with the Department of City Planning, and I

         14  support the R3X. So, that's my response.

         15                 And June, where is your house, June?

         16  You have to talk into the microphone. Where is your

         17  house?

         18                 MS. MUC: Two doors away from this

         19  handsome fellow's.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes, he is.

         21  Let the record show that Walter is handsome. Yes,

         22  everybody in Cedar Grove knows that. But what

         23  address do you live? What street?

         24                 MS. MUC: 64-16 136th Street.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: 136th Street.
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          2  Yes, so, you would be in the -- you would be in the

          3  R3X area, right.

          4                 Oh, I'm sorry. What's the address

          5  again?

          6                 MS. MUC: 64-12 136th Street.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Oh, fine.

          8  Okay, so you would be south of 64 Avenue, therefore

          9  in the R3-1.

         10                 MS. MUC: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         12                 MS. MUC: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I just wanted

         14  to establish that. And I think that the R3-1

         15  designation is appropriate for that area. It would

         16  be a downzone from the R3-2.

         17                 MR. KEWSH: But not much of a down

         18  zone. Because it still allows two-family homes to be

         19  built. There's 130 of those homes existing in that

         20  subdivision, which was formerly known as the North

         21  Flushing Ridge Subdivision. If each of them is

         22  converted to a two-family home, we will quadruple

         23  the traffic, based upon my experience with my

         24  neighbor's conversion within that area, in a

         25  cul-de-sac area, it will be impossible to move.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And what

          3  would be your proposal for that area?

          4                 MR. KEWSH: My proposal is that we

          5  form a zoning text, designated R3-0. It will be just

          6  like R3-1 and R3-2 in its specifications, except

          7  when it comes to the restriction of what type of

          8  homes can be built there, it will specify that only

          9  one family, semi-detached homes can be built in that

         10  area, as opposed to allowing one- or two-family

         11  semi-detached homes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. KEWSH: And then all that would be

         14  necessary would be to simply reconform the map, make

         15  that an R3-0 area from an R3-1 area. There are

         16  numerous developments like ours in Queens, in

         17  Brooklyn, and elsewhere in the City, largely these

         18  subdivisions were done by one architect and sold and

         19  populated out over and over again with minor

         20  modification. So, the potential for disfigured

         21  growth, cancerous-type growth in the community, is

         22  malignancy, is certainly available if these houses

         23  are converted.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: All right. I

         25  disagree with the notion of cancer. I disagree with
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          2  the notion of malignancy. I don't think that's

          3  what's here. I think that I, you know, sent out a

          4  mailing to the community, I explained what was going

          5  on, I got no one who made a response back to me,

          6  including all the signatories to the petition that

          7  was circulated, I reached out to all of them. Nobody

          8  responded. And it was really not until this morning

          9  that my office received calls on this.

         10                 I certainly appreciate --

         11                 MR. KEWSH: Why don't we do what the

         12  UN does, we'll hold a plebescite, decide who wants

         13  to be in the R2 area and who wants to be in the R3

         14  areas.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Walter, we've

         16  had the process. We've reached out to the entire

         17  community. I think the R3-1 is appropriate. I

         18  haven't had --

         19                 MR. KEWSH: I'm not disagreeing with

         20  you. You're right, R3-1 --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I haven't had

         22  a push-back on that.

         23                 MR. KEWSH: -- Is appropriate because

         24  we have nothing else to do with it. That's what I'm

         25  saying.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          3                 So, in the absence -- I've got to

          4  tell you, my own peril here, as I walked the

          5  neighborhood, I don't think it's an evil, sinful

          6  thing for people who want to create a two-family

          7  home to have the ability to do that. And I think if

          8  we had that plebiscite, there would be a lot of

          9  agreement with people who --

         10                 MR. KEWSH: What if they create a

         11  two-family home and it turns out that their renters

         12  are disrespectful of the people that live next door

         13  in the one-family home. Such as my neighbor is --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I don't think

         15  zoning solves bad manners in people who are --

         16                 MR. KEWSH: Well, in this case --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Ill-mannered,

         18  I just don't think that's the solution or the

         19  remedy.

         20                 MR. KEWSH: Well, in this case zoning

         21  started ill-manners.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I'm just

         23  saying --

         24                 MR. KEWSH: It went to the point that

         25  he struck me in the face, and put me on the ground,
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          2  and I had to call the police and had to go to the

          3  hospital.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I live in a

          5  single-family neighborhood, and I don't have

          6  agreements with all of my neighbors, and so I don't

          7  think that's the remedy. And while I can appreciate

          8  your perspective, I just simply don't agree on 138th

          9  Street block face going into R2A, I think R3X is the

         10  appropriate call to that, for that, and I do support

         11  the R3-1, you know, south of 64th Avenue for kind of

         12  a lack of a better remedy, and I don't disagree with

         13  people going to two-families. That's where we are,

         14  and I wish we could agree more, but we just don't.

         15  I'm sorry.

         16                 MR. KEWSH: The problem with people

         17  going to two-family is eventually it ends up three-

         18  or four-family, and it ends up being more than one-,

         19  two-family, and that's what we're fighting.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Again, we're

         21  not providing for people to doing three- and

         22  four-family here. And so that's not what is being

         23  provided. And so, you know there are other ways to

         24  protect against that, and I don't think that having

         25  a more restrictive zoning than you need in order to
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          2  protect against illegal activity is a remedy, and if

          3  people choose to convert to two-family homes and

          4  they do it legally, right now it's R3-2, it's going

          5  to R3-1.

          6                 MR. KEWSH: People down in Washington

          7  have the same logic.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I hate to cut off

          9  dialogue, but we do have a number of speakers --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:-- To go to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Certainly.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to be

         14  able to move on.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: You bet.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         17                 MR. KEWSH: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel

         19  is, and I'm going to be terrible with some of these

         20  pronunciations, so please, I apologize in advance.

         21  Fuzlul Yusuf. Chuei Chou. Tsui Kowk Fu. And Joann

         22  Wong. And, again, if I pronounce the name wrong, I

         23  apologize. You can please correct me.

         24                 Is Joann, are you here with Frank? Do

         25  you guys both want to speak together? Okay, for the
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          2  next panel. Great.

          3                 Whomever wants to go first.

          4                 MS. CHOU: Good morning, Council

          5  Chair, Council members, ladies and gentlemen. My

          6  name is Chuei Son Chou and I live on 148-50 59th

          7  Avenue, Flushing. I've been living in the Queens

          8  Borough Hills for the last 19 years, and I don't

          9  think rezoning my area is a fair and justice

         10  proposal.

         11                 First of all, we were never notified

         12  by anyone about any meeting or this proposal. We

         13  believe all residences should be notified and vote

         14  on an important issue such as this. We're all

         15  taxpayers who are entitled to the basic American

         16  rights. This new zoning is simply is discriminatory

         17  against the value of homes, real estate, and the

         18  residences of this area.

         19                 I'm here to represent my family,

         20  myself, and people on my block. My father is also

         21  present here at the meeting. We formally request our

         22  section is certified again as R4.

         23                 Now-a-days real estate is very

         24  expensive and very difficult for young adults to

         25  purchase.
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          2                 In the near future, my parents would

          3  like to expand our home so that my brother and I can

          4  start out on our own without the heavy burden of

          5  financial situations. We believe in family value

          6  where we work with our elders and take care of them

          7  at old age.

          8                 Again, we formally request our

          9  section as certified R4. Council members, I deeply

         10  hope you would take this into consideration and send

         11  my area back to where it belongs.

         12                 And I thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, excuse me.

         14  I guess I'm a little confused by your testimony. You

         15  want it to remain R4?

         16                 MS. CHOU: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In other words,

         18  you want no change?

         19                 MS. CHOU: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         21                 MR. YUSUF: (Not identified for the

         22  record.) Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for

         23  allowing me to talk. In fact, I hand over some

         24  insert, if you can look into, I will go over it

         25  quickly.
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          2                 The CPC revised amendment as we know

          3  it is R4A, by even doing that we will be able to

          4  have, to preserve our legal space to 0.7 and that's

          5  what initially we wanted to have our broader living

          6  space, by cutting down to R2A and R3X, we'll be

          7  cutting down our living space. So, we want the FAR,

          8  F-A-R to stay as is, as 0.75, and allow our family

          9  to really move on and grow. And as you go into this

         10  community, this is still a lower density resident

         11  district, and layout of the community is a mixed

         12  community, having things I don't want to go over. I

         13  have some pictures inserted here, and which showed

         14  some of the buildings are still commercial,

         15  adjoining area residential, and along the Booth

         16  Memorial Avenue, on page number two, Booth Memorial

         17  Avenue and 157th, these are attached houses as still

         18  staying there. Some of the new structure being

         19  building, looks much better than what we have there.

         20  So, it brings the value of it, it brings the

         21  community, it gives a good look in the community. As

         22  you go on and look into my other page three, one of

         23  this is my house. This is still a one single

         24  dwelling, one-family house on page three in the

         25  bottom section. It looks good. I got little FAR
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          2  because I have big family, the family has to stay

          3  together. Like the other gentleman says here, he is

          4  here 52 years, I'm living in this community 50

          5  years. I have no intention to move from here, and I

          6  have two property being affected by cutting down the

          7  zone. And I'm really against of it. And the new

          8  structures are built, and I have comparison of the

          9  new structure as against the old structures, the new

         10  structure is giving us more living space, visually

         11  more, there are more including the central air and

         12  security system. Increase the real estate values.

         13  Increase the City revenues. Increase the family

         14  bonding. Increase affordable housing among the New

         15  Yorkers. As against the whole structures, 50 to 60

         16  years old. These structures need amendment at some

         17  time.

         18                 As you go on, onto the page five,

         19  there is all new structure, site-to-site, the first

         20  page on the page five on the top section, new

         21  structure, against there are the old structures.

         22  Does look ugly. Some of the older structures need

         23  modification. And when they do modification, of

         24  course you are spending some amount of dollar

         25  amount, you want to do it good. So, what we ask for
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          2  is more living space, what we ask for has not a

          3  single family, a double family, at least a

          4  two-family. And as you go on --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, if you can

          6  sum up.

          7                 MR. YUSUF: Yes, sir.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You went over the

          9  time. I did allow you to go over, but if you can sum

         10  up.

         11                 MR. YUSUF: Okay, sir.

         12                 What we are against, what destroys

         13  beauty of the community, is in page seven. There is

         14  a house, building, just the rear end of the house,

         15  it is a three-story. We are against all of it. What

         16  we are against, on top of that there is two other

         17  rows built in. I'm against of it. Another house is

         18  142 Street there, on top of that house, these are

         19  creating, destroying the beauty. We don't want

         20  towers. We don't want three-family units. We don't

         21  want four-family units. The beauty of the

         22  residential outlook is on my page nine. So, you can

         23  have a look, the residential outlook is still being

         24  maintained and I am really in favor of R4.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. KOWK FU: I live in 146-39 Booth

          3  Memorial. R4A, it's R4A designation is the result of

          4  many discussion of the neighborhood with the City

          5  Planning Commission. And this serves the intent of

          6  the proposed zoning, which is to preserve the

          7  characteristic of the neighborhood. Also, it has the

          8  minimal negative impact of property values and

          9  property taxes. The Commissioners of the City

         10  Planning Commission, they came to our neighborhood

         11  on a walking tour, and last month they walked 12 to

         12  0 for R4A.

         13                 So, all in all, this is a win/win

         14  situation for the community, because we can preserve

         15  in the future if we need to build a two-family

         16  detached home.

         17                 Councilman Liu, yesterday we had a

         18  meeting. He said he recommend R3A in our area. To us

         19  this is not acceptable because R3A you have.0 FAR.

         20  In this community, 67 percent of the homeowners are

         21  Caucasians. We have different cultural background.

         22  Our families usually would like to stick together.

         23  For  .0, for .6 FAR, it's pretty much impossible if

         24  we want to expand our family together, have more

         25  comfortable space.
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          2                 So, R4A is a more rational approach.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I just want to go

          4  back to the gentleman on my left.

          5                 You were talking about this

          6  three-story house?

          7                 MR. YUSUF: We are opposing this kind

          8  of a structure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, that's what

         10  I thought you said. I just want to let you know that

         11  under R4 that would be legal. You could do that in

         12  every house. So, I think you better think about your

         13  testimony. Because the one thing you said you don't

         14  want would be allowed under R4.

         15                 MR. YUSUF: No, we don't want that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, then you

         17  don't want R4.

         18                 MR. YUSUF: CPC, what it was,

         19  proposal, I do agree with that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So now you're in

         21  support of R4A.

         22                 MR. YUSUF: R4A.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         24                 I would appreciate, you know, and

         25  this is a comment for everybody who is coming to
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          2  speak next, please be very clear on what you're

          3  testifying for. Are you testifying for the original

          4  application? Or the R4A sections, or are you

          5  suggesting leave it alone as R4? But you need to be

          6  very clear, because otherwise we're not getting --

          7  we're really not understanding what you want.

          8                 MR. YUSUF: We understand. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         10                 Next panel, Joann and Frank Wong,

         11  Eugene Eng and Sally Leung.

         12                 MS. WONG: My name is Joann Wong. Good

         13  morning, Chair Avella and Council members, ladies

         14  and gentlemen.

         15                 I live on Booth Memorial Avenue,

         16  between 146th Street and 148th Street. This area is

         17  in controversy right now. The City Planning Council

         18  had amended the proposal to change my building to

         19  R4A and Councilman Liu is now suggesting that it be

         20  down-zoned to R3X. Yes, the City Planning Council

         21  did indeed hear our voices, and they came to visit

         22  our areas, and they heard our concerns for

         23  two-family, and I'm very grateful for that, and R4A

         24  is what I accept, because it allows me the

         25  flexibility of two-family with a greater floor area.
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          2                 I have not yet, and I don't know in

          3  the future, I have no crystal ball to say, yes, I

          4  will change my home to two-family, but I have

          5  elderly parents, and I have a daughter, and if I'm

          6  only allowed R3X, the Floor Area is very, very

          7  small. It would only allow me a one-bedroom

          8  apartment for each floor, and that would not be

          9  acceptable.

         10                 I do suggest that we keep with the

         11  R4A. I do approve of that. Thank you.

         12                 MR. WONG: Hi. My name is Frank Wong.

         13  I live at 146-27 Booth Memorial Avenue. I live there

         14  since 1991. In November, last November, my neighbor

         15  come to me, they tell me that, hey, Frank, do you

         16  know that the area have been down-zoned, and what

         17  down-zoning? I have no idea what's going on. So,

         18  when I asked him, oh, everybody downzone? They say,

         19  no, our area. I say wait a minute. So, I looked at

         20  the map, and I find out that, okay, most of these

         21  area previously is called R4. Now they divide into

         22  the other section. Just minor change. Why we become

         23  discriminatory, arbitrary you become R2A?

         24                 So, that's not the point. The point

         25  is that when I called the City Planning Council,
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          2  they said, are you the only one that call? Wait a

          3  minute, I'm the only one call? What am I? So, I talk

          4  to the neighbor and look at all these people here,

          5  they find out for me, because me and other two

          6  neighbor, we walked all in affected area to pass out

          7  pamphlet. They show on November 28th, on the St. Ann

          8  School, the basement. And everybody look sharp, we

          9  never heard of that. So, we heard it from Council

         10  Member Liu and City Board, Community Board 7. Yes, I

         11  agree that effort be made; however, it not really

         12  pass through to the people.

         13                 So, when Chairman, you mentioned that

         14  we had a minority. Let me say that, okay? I don't

         15  know how many people can stay at this Queens Borough

         16  Hill Neighborhood meeting. Normally they mention

         17  about 30, whatever, and these people, they represent

         18  the homeowner, the homeowner in this neighborhood?

         19  That's 25 houses in this neighborhood, and this

         20  so-called, because they are the only people there,

         21  they voice their concern, now they become the

         22  majority.

         23                 Then let me show you that. When I saw

         24  the affected area, as Mr. John Young said, about 300

         25  union. I got the petition, this, the signature from
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          2  over 200 home, and everybody oppose the downzoning.

          3  You telling me we are the minority, so we leave the

          4  people, actually live in the area to decide the fate

          5  of somebody live around somewhere, oh, I don't like

          6  your area, let's downzone him, downzone her, but

          7  look, I read the concern of people actually live

          8  there. We have to deserve the first-hand look for

          9  what's happening.

         10                 So, we disagree, but however, the

         11  proposal, the City Planning Council, they understand

         12  our need, we wish them, we understand, yes, they try

         13  to make this community better, we understand. So,

         14  finally we come to the point where we accept R4A,

         15  which is what most people need, instead of what they

         16  previously believed to be the majority, and so I

         17  appreciate that, people to consider, what people

         18  actually live in there, have small saying and

         19  somebody just from the outside to decide that. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would just make

         22  a quick comment that you're absolutely right, and we

         23  do consider the majority of the residents in any

         24  area to do the rezoning, that's basically how these

         25  things came about going through the community board
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          2  and the civic associations.

          3                 With my comment about the minority,

          4  it was a minority of the people who showed up at

          5  City Planning in relation to the number of homes.

          6                 You have to admit a small percentage

          7  of the number of homeowners actually showed up. That

          8  was my comment.

          9                 Not that we're going to not listen to

         10  a majority of the residents and the home-owners.

         11                 MR. WONG: However --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I wasn't

         13  soliciting a response.

         14                 Since you mentioned the petition in

         15  your testimony, I think you'd like to see the

         16  petition, okay?

         17                 Next speaker.

         18                 MS. LEUNG: Hi. My name is Sally

         19  Leung. I live in 57-32 Parson Boulevard, which is

         20  the area on the left side over there. Yes, just

         21  pointed. Which is this whole area is considered

         22  three blocks, and I live in my neighborhood since

         23  1986. I have three sons and I'm really grateful for

         24  trying to notify us that this whole situation of

         25  downzoning bring that to our neighborhood, bring it
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          2  to our attention. We had mentioned it. Nobody had

          3  known downzoning going on until he advised this.

          4                 So, I'm really in favor in R4A. The

          5  reason for that is that I understand in the position

          6  as the neighborhood do have some control as to

          7  looking at houses being built and stuff like that.

          8  But since it does have some control, but yet it

          9  doesn't lose the flexibility and potential for

         10  homeowner want to build decent two-family. Because I

         11  have two older, I have my in-laws, and they're

         12  living with me. I have no intention to do anything

         13  right now, my kid is too young. But that could be in

         14  the future, I don't know. I love my neighborhood. I

         15  want it remain nice neighborhood to live in, but yet

         16  you could have this flexibility.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 MR. ENG: Hi, Chairman and Council

         20  members. My name is Eugene Eng, and I live in the

         21  same area, I live in the R2A area, just about four,

         22  five house away, and we are really happy in the last

         23  meeting that we know that our area R2A is going to

         24  be changed to R4A as the CPC recommend the best

         25  solution, and until we have a meeting with John Liu,
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          2  the Councilman, that he tell us he going to modify

          3  that from R4A to R3X because he has some problem

          4  with the City Planning Commission, and incidentally

          5  I don't know what the problem is, but he can tell me

          6  in detail what this problem, okay?

          7                 And I want to clarify that with you,

          8  when you as the Chair, you say minority of the

          9  people, then the CPC take into consideration to

         10  change that based on 50 people, but that 50 people,

         11  over 2,000 in the whole Queens that would be like

         12  ten percent, less than ten percent. But I'm talking

         13  about if you take the area of the R2A, the residents

         14  in R2A area, 100 and 200 home, and then if you take

         15  a poll of the people in there, petition there, then

         16  the math will show you that it's over 90 percent, 80

         17  percent, okay?

         18                 So, if anybody in those area in favor

         19  of R4A, then if you, Council members, you represent

         20  us, the community, and we have few meeting with John

         21  Liu in the school, 163, and we voice our concern,

         22  and everybody -- not everybody, over 90 percent, 80

         23  percent want R4A, okay? It's not a minority. To me

         24  it's not a minority. The whole Queens, that is

         25  minority. But I'm talking just the R2A area, that is
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          2  almost 100 percent, six or seven houses already

          3  built. The one next to me has already built

          4  two-family, and some guy across the street and two

          5  times, when I hose my lawn, and he said, you have

          6  ugly house. Next to you is big, and yours is little

          7  house there. When are you going to, you know, do

          8  something about it, okay?

          9                 So, I'm in favor of what the City

         10  Council try to modify R4A, not downgrade, I don't

         11  know his reason, to R3X. All our people here, if you

         12  take a vote, you will know that what we want is R4A.

         13  So, you should represent us, you know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Your point has

         15  been made. Your point has been made.

         16                 Thank you. We'll move on to the next

         17  panel. Agnes Li. Markella Garris. Jian Hui Liu. And

         18  Julia Fan.

         19                 MS. GARRIS: Good morning. Good

         20  morning, honored Chair, honored listeners and ladies

         21  and gentlemen of the panel. My name is Markella

         22  Garris. I am a product of an ethnic blend of Greek,

         23  Italian, born in New York as one of your

         24  representatives here spoke very nicely about

         25  earlier. I'm a resident of this area for some 15
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          2  years and a homeowner that will be affected with all

          3  of these various downzonings that are being

          4  proposed.

          5                 I own my home for 32 years and have

          6  raised my children in it and plan on keeping it.

          7  This house was purchased twice by myself, once as a

          8  newlywed, and unfortunately, again, after a bitter

          9  divorce. Keeping the above-mentioned in mind, I

         10  would like to bring to the panel's attention that

         11  the previously proposed de-zoning of my area where I

         12  live on Parsons Boulevard, 5727 Parsons Boulevard,

         13  will destroy my efforts of my whole life. Adhering,

         14  though, to the new proposal of 4A that was amended

         15  will allow me to keep working towards my goal.

         16  Needless to say, with so many burdens in the past

         17  years, there were many times that I asked myself if

         18  all the sacrificing and worrying that came along

         19  with all my responsibilities was worth it, what kept

         20  me going was the progress of my children and myself

         21  and the dream of turning my current home into a

         22  two-family, knowing that I have the option will give

         23  me the flexibility to stay in the only home I've

         24  ever known, even after I am in retirement.

         25                 Your decision will have a great
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          2  affect on me. Your decision hopefully will allow me

          3  to provide opportunities for me and my children on

          4  improving the quality of life in our later years.

          5  Your decision will either destroy or promote the

          6  institution of family which is the basis of

          7  community and society in America.

          8                 In closing, I'd like to thank you for

          9  giving me this opportunity to express myself, and I

         10  trust that you will take our serious concerns under

         11  consideration when making your recommendation or

         12  vote, whatever the procedure may be.

         13                 I am in favor of the amendment in

         14  which my area, my block, would be R4A. Thank you so

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         17                 MS. LI: Good morning, to all Council

         18  members. I am Agnes Li. I live at 57-36 Parsons

         19  Boulevard. I am in favor of R4A and opposed to R3X.

         20  I lived in my house 17 years, and during that time

         21  the neighborhood has always been good. I want to

         22  have the opportunity to make changes and improve

         23  quality of living, and I want to expand the living

         24  environment as my family grows, give each individual

         25  in the family a sense of privacy.
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          2                 If you rezone this area, it will take

          3  away the opportunity for me. It does not seem fair

          4  that our area is singled out for rezoning, while

          5  adjoining area are not. Comparatively speaking, our

          6  plot of land is the same, if not bigger than

          7  adjoining areas that are not getting rezoned.

          8                 This seems to be a decision not based

          9  on any sound reasons, other than some people feel it

         10  should be rezoned to R3X.

         11                 Even the Department of City Planning

         12  Commissioners that came to do a survey and examined

         13  the issue recommends that this area can be rezoned

         14  as R4A. I hope you all will take the recommendation.

         15                 R4A will enable us to keep our home

         16  as detached properties, while giving us the ability

         17  to improve to a two-family home when our family

         18  needs require it.

         19                 This will keep this neighborhood nice

         20  and stable in the future, as it has been for the 17

         21  years I have lived here. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 MR. FAN: Hi. My name is Julia Fan. I

         24  live at 58-27 146th Street. I live here for 13

         25  years. My two kids was born in same place. I never
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          2  planned, even a lot of broker came to my house and

          3  said to sell your house, you could get a profit. I

          4  said, no, I live here. This is for my whole life,

          5  because it's very close by downtown Flushing. And

          6  that day when Frank Wong told me downzoning your

          7  house, I was so surprised. Before that, we never

          8  received, we never read from the newspaper the

          9  community 7 has been approved for downzoning in this

         10  area. We did not know anything about this. And after

         11  that I ask some architect -- I never planned to

         12  extend my house, honest to tell you now, I just want

         13  this in case when my kids grow up, you know, the

         14  house, when I bought, was 108.8, now it's go over

         15  six something already. That is not possible for my

         16  kids. Maybe buy another house. Maybe I make, you

         17  know, two-family house for my kids. That's the one

         18  thing I thought.

         19                 Another thing is, the people who

         20  agree downzoning, even John Liu ask them, they don't

         21  come because most of them are still living R4, or

         22  they change them house to the commercial (sic). Kay

         23  Mihania (phonetic), she is the people for

         24  ex-chairman strongly to ask downzoning, and she live

         25  much closer Main Street, much closer hospital, but
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          2  she gave her house to commercial.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ma'am, if you

          4  would, I would appreciate it if you didn't involve

          5  personalities.

          6                 MS. FAN: That's not personality,

          7  because area --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, you don't

          9  have to mention people's names.

         10                 MS. FAN: Okay, sorry. And, you know,

         11  that's another thing is, like John Liu said, change

         12  zoning is now changed to half, like a street, but my

         13  street you can see so clearly. I'm 58-27, John Liu

         14  said now he propose to R3X, but across the street is

         15  58-27, he propose R4A. I don't know why. Same

         16  street. They cut it at two parts. Why? Even my

         17  parts, we have six families. Three doctors, two

         18  businessmen, no one wants extend a family, okay?

         19                 I pray for R4A, okay? That's good for

         20  my family, for my future. I'm not, you know, agree

         21  to R3X.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Your point has

         23  been made. You ran over time, but your point has

         24  been made.

         25                 MS. FAN: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next speaker.

          3                 MR. LIU: Hi. Good morning. My name is

          4  Shun Qian Liu. I live at 138-11 60th Avenue. So, I

          5  don't disagree for the change of rezoning because

          6  rezoning would be down living space, so it's better

          7  to keep it like that, so all the families grow up

          8  bigger, so in the future will be no room for the

          9  living space. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I appreciate the

         11  fact that you're right under time with your

         12  comments.

         13                 Council Member Liu.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. Chairman. And I appreciate all of the

         16  people who have come out here and participated in

         17  the process. This is why we have a process so that

         18  people can participate, and in fact, all of you have

         19  already made a difference by going to the City

         20  Planning Commission and letting them hear your views

         21  on the rezoning. I know that originally you didn't

         22  want to have any rezoning whatsoever, and now you

         23  would be happier with the City Planning Commission's

         24  recommendations to make all five of these pockets

         25  R4A, instead of certainly the R3X and the R2A as
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          2  originally proposed.

          3                 Again, I am in favor of a plan that

          4  keeps the originally intended R3X areas to R4A, as

          5  the Planning Commission has recommended. But instead

          6  of accepting the Planning Commission's

          7  recommendation to change to R4A what was originally

          8  intended to be R2A, to take a middle-of-the-road

          9  approach for R3X that will allow all of you to have

         10  the two-family flexibility, while at the same time

         11  keeping as close as possible to the area's

         12  residential integrity.

         13                 It's a very confusing process, and

         14  plan, this rezoning. And I think I have said over

         15  and over again that we don't do zoning on a

         16  block-by-block basis. It is applied to an entire

         17  area. In the case of contextual rezoning, it's that

         18  much more complicated because what we're doing is

         19  looking to see what exists already in the various

         20  blocks.

         21                 So, you're going to have many, many

         22  cases. You look on the map, there are so many cases

         23  where the zoning will be different on one side of

         24  the street, as opposed to the other side of the

         25  street. That is a fact of contextual rezoning.
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          2                 So, this is a plan that I will

          3  continue to advocate for. I know that the Chairman

          4  has called for a vote, I think will call for a vote

          5  about it this coming Friday. You are certainly

          6  welcome, everyone, to come back down again. The

          7  reason why I had the meeting last night and the

          8  meeting last week, was to let you know, as I have

          9  always promised, exactly what next steps were going

         10  to take place in this process.

         11                 Last week I met with all of you, as

         12  well as about 100 people to let you know that the

         13  City Council was taking into action, after the

         14  Planning Commission had taken its vote, and that to

         15  be fair to all of you, in advance of the hearings I

         16  will let you know where I stand, which was last

         17  night, so that you can come down and speak against

         18  what I am going to advocate. But again, the

         19  participation is very important, and at the end of

         20  the day, it is not about one block versus the next

         21  block, it is not about 50 people versus 300 people,

         22  there are thousands of people who are going to be

         23  affected by this rezoning, and the test is not what

         24  happens next week or what happens next month, the

         25  test is what happens five years from now, ten years
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          2  from now, and what happens to that neighborhood and

          3  being able to look back on this day and this week

          4  and this month and know that the changes that we had

          5  made were the right thing to do for the

          6  neighborhood.

          7                 But I want to thank all of you for

          8  participating in this process.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you want to

         10  say something, that's fine.

         11                 MS. LI: Okay. On January 24th

         12  everyone leave with happy face, it's R4A. That's

         13  what most people want, okay? Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         17  Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This panel is

         20  dismissed.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, I'm not

         22  asking questions. I would just like, if we can, R3X

         23  and R4A, both are two-family home designations, or

         24  allow for two-family home designations, and R2A is

         25  only single-family home, and I guess what I'd really
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          2  love to hear from any other testifiers that are

          3  coming up is why the distinction. Besides clearly

          4  this is not a question, clearly the distinction

          5  between the  0.75 FAR and the 0.5 FAR is very

          6  meaningful to a lot of folks, but I think I would

          7  just like to hear, since they're both two-family

          8  homes, in both designations you'll be able to create

          9  a home, even if it's not the perfect home for your

         10  sisters, mothers, fathers and family members, and I

         11  think that that's important to everyone in this room

         12  who is testifying on the R4A, I would just like to

         13  hear some clarification on why the size is so

         14  important and how the distinction between the two

         15  will really affect you.

         16                 I also would like to just make one

         17  more comment, which is that, when we talk about the

         18  hearings that we have, everybody here needs to

         19  understand that when City Planning calls for one

         20  thing, the people in opposition to that one thing

         21  always show up at that hearing. Then when there is a

         22  modification, the people that are happy with that

         23  modification never come to that hearing, the people

         24  who are in opposition to that modification come to

         25  that hearing. Then we get it back here and the
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          2  Councilman has suggested a certain modification that

          3  he wants, so clearly the people that are in

          4  agreement with him are not going to be anxious to

          5  show up because they're in agreement, and the people

          6  that are in opposition to that will then show up.

          7                 So, I guess if that sounded

          8  confusing, it really isn't when you just think about

          9  the fact that whatever is out there that people

         10  like, those folks are not showing up to oppose it.

         11  So, I guess we need to keep that clear as you're

         12  testifying and talking about, well, folks were happy

         13  when they left a certain hearing, it's usually

         14  because they're the ones who are getting what they

         15  want at that time.

         16                 So, those are the two issues that I

         17  would just love to throw out there, and I would just

         18  love, you know, part of this Committee and the Chair

         19  of this Committee to hear the distinctions between

         20  the two and why it's so important.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now, I was given

         23  a package of names of people who are here, didn't

         24  want to testify but would just stand in their chair

         25  and say they're in favor of R4A. So, I will do that.
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          2  If those individuals still want to testify, you're

          3  welcome to do that. Because there are more names

          4  here than there are people in the room, so there's

          5  something not quite right here.

          6                 But I'll read those names off. If

          7  you're in support of the amendment of R4A, just

          8  stand up and say, yes, I'm in support of R4A. Not if

          9  you've spoken already. I see somebody in the room,

         10  if you've already spoken already, no, this isn't

         11  you.

         12                 Liang Chow? That's you, sir.

         13                 (Not using microphone.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, we're

         15  already starting off on the wrong foot.

         16                 If you want to give testimony, then

         17  come up and sit down. I was led to believe that all

         18  of these individuals would need to do is to

         19  physically put their name on the record as to what

         20  they support. I'm led to believe that all of these

         21  names are in support of R4A. So, if that's the case

         22  and you want to waive your speaking time, all you

         23  have to do is stand up, acknowledge your name and

         24  say, yes, I'm in support of R4A.

         25                 MR. CHOU: I'm in support of R4.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: R4A or R4?

          3                 MR. CHOU: R4.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. Let's

          5  change that.

          6                 Tian Yan Chen.

          7                 MR. YAN CHEN: Support of R4A.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Is it

          9  pronounced Xuzeng Wu? Do you want to speak up here?

         10  Push the button. And restate your name.

         11                 MR. WU: Ys, my name is Xuzeng Wu. My

         12  house is 58-31 146th Street. Originally I want to

         13  keep the R4, but as somebody want to come down to R3

         14  and ask something, so I think we need a compromise,

         15  so R4A is okay for me. To us and many people, you

         16  know. Some people want to go high, some low, a

         17  compromise, in my opinion, it's halfway.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 Sum Koon Wong.

         20                 MR. KOON WONG: R4A.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, sir.

         22                 Is it Dai or Dai Sue Li?

         23  Unfortunately, I can't see you. There is a big map

         24  in the way.

         25                 (Not using microphone.)

                                                            103

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Tony Esposito.

          4                 MR. ESPOSITO: R4A.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Chao Lin.

          6                 MS. LIN: R4A.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Wait a second.

          8  Either there are two Chao Lin's or there is an echo

          9  in the room.

         10                 MS. LIN: R4A.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. Who lives

         12  at 138-07 60th? Of the two individuals that just

         13  stood up? Of the two individuals who just stood up,

         14  both stand up again. And the woman on the end. Just

         15  stand up. And we thought this was going to be

         16  easier. Of the two of you, who lives at 138-07 60th

         17  Avenue?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Hold on, Mr.

         19  Chairman. If I may? Yes, I do want to encourage

         20  everybody to, if you would like to speak -- Mr.

         21  Chairman, I would indicate, and I would indicate

         22  that we do have Jasper Lee from Speaker Christine

         23  Quinn's Office who, at your pleasure, Mr. Chairman,

         24  would be able to interpret for anybody who would

         25  need that interpretation. We're looking for Chao Lin
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          2  at 138-07 60th Avenue. That would be (Speaking in

          3  Chinese).

          4                 Okay, that's her.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, John.

          6                 Hsiaomin Tsenghu. 148-42 59th Avenue.

          7                 MS. TSENGHU: R4A.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: K-h-a, how is

          9  that pronounced? Kha Tat. 148-14 59th.

         10                 He stood up. Okay, he's in favor of

         11  R4A, according to this sheet.

         12                 Louis Chan and Chun Lun Chan. Okay,

         13  sure, come on up. I was going to ask you that

         14  anyway, because you really didn't indicate a

         15  preference on this slip.

         16                 That's all right. Let me go through

         17  the rest to see if we can get everybody who wants to

         18  testify at once.

         19                 Min di Li?

         20                 MS. LI: R4.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: R4, okay.

         22                 Betty K is it Tia? Mr. Jamal. Sure,

         23  come on up. Cliff Chin.

         24                 MR. CHIN: R4A.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
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          2                 Yun Chun Lin.

          3                 MS. LIN: R4A.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          5                 Jian Hui Liu.

          6                 MR. HUI LIU: R4A.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

          8                 Hui Chu Hu.

          9                 MS. CHU HU: R4A.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. You can

         11  correct me on my pronunciation if I'm doing it

         12  wrong. I would love to do it correctly, too. Love to

         13  be corrected.

         14                 Yung Chun Lin?

         15                 Mei Yu Lin?

         16                 MS. YU LIN: R4.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: R4? Okay.

         18                 No, what? Don't be coached.

         19                 Qu Jun Lin, 59-20 136th Street.

         20                 MS. JUN LIN: R4A.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 This one, the last name is Wang. The

         23  printing is so bad I can't make it out. 146-42 56

         24  Rd. Last name is Wang.

         25                 Sarah Shea.
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          2                 MS. SHEA: I'd like to testify.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure, come on up.

          4  Ming Yang Lau.

          5                 MR. YANG LAU: R4.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: R4.

          7                 Pao Tsai Yin.

          8                 MR. TSAI YIN: I want R4.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: R4.

         10                 Okay, and we have a panel of three.

         11  Sir.

         12                 MR. CHAN: My name is Louis Chan. Good

         13  morning, Council and Committee members.

         14                 My family and I are new homeowners of

         15  a property at 57-17 on 162nd Street. We happened

         16  upon this Queens Borough Hill rezoning, and by

         17  chance, and the property is located on 10D Section

         18  of the proposed Queens Borough Hill zoning map. You

         19  can't miss it, since it's the only brown section of

         20  the proposed area, in the upper right corner.

         21  Currently it's R4, situated with two other large

         22  multi-family properties, about 3,000 square feet,

         23  which are all built more than 30 years ago and

         24  should remain R4.

         25                 My property sits right next to a
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          2  corner of the proposed R3 zoning with its property

          3  line touching the R4 section adjacent to it.

          4  Allowing my property to fall back onto and remain R4

          5  will not affect the down zoning of the area in any

          6  way. I won't be making any changes to it. But

          7  changing my property to R3A would represent a

          8  financial risk to me and lower our property value.

          9  This will affect me substantially since I will

         10  continue to pay the same amount of tax and

         11  insurance, carrying a large mortgage and could risk

         12  foreclosure, God forbid, if anything happens to my

         13  property, I will not be able to erect the same

         14  structure.

         15                 I will not be able to rent out the

         16  same size apartment type to cover my mortgage,

         17  risking foreclosure.

         18                 Please allow my property to remain

         19  R4. Thank you for your time and consideration.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next speaker.

         21                 MR. JAMAL: Hi. My name is Hasir

         22  Jamal. I am a resident of 60-04 153rd Street. This

         23  is first time I been in this kind of hearing, and we

         24  didn't know that this rezoning was taking place til

         25  November, and I appreciate the homeowner who
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          2  informed us that this rezoning is being taken place.

          3  And we got shocked, and after I found out, I want to

          4  the several houses, knock on the door, in my

          5  neighborhood, like two, three blocks, and I asked

          6  their suggestion. And I didn't find one single

          7  person in those three, four blocks who is in favor

          8  of this rezoning. And if we are doing this process

          9  at the democratic way, we should hear the voice of

         10  the people of the homeowner of that area. And as Mr.

         11  Liu is representing that area, he knows how much was

         12  there in the auditorium, and out of the 200, 300

         13  people, 85 percent was against this rezoning

         14  process, and most of the people are shocked. I am

         15  not sure that you are going to hear the voice of the

         16  home owner, but that's our most of the voice from

         17  that area, we should not do the rezoning, but in

         18  case you have to do, there is no other choice, you

         19  will want to do R4A but not less than that. But

         20  people are really shocked that rezonings have been

         21  taking place, and homeowner not been informed. They

         22  get the bill, they get the tax statement, they never

         23  get the statement from the City that they are doing

         24  this zoning. And I would like with due respect to

         25  our Councilman, that if he don't hear the voice, I
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          2  think he will misrepresent the area of the Queens

          3  Borough Hill, and he has heard the voice that 85

          4  percent people are against the rezoning. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just for

          6  clarification, what section do you live in? If you

          7  will go to the map and point to it.

          8                 MR. JAMAL: Okay, sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Don't talk, because

         10  then you've got to come back to the microphone.

         11                 MR. JAMAL: I live right here, between

         12  the Horace Harding and 60th Avenue.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, you're in the

         14  proposed 4A section?

         15                 MR. JAMAL: I'm 4A section, right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, it's my

         17  understanding, and Council Member Liu could correct

         18  me, but he is suggesting that that remain R4A.

         19                 MR. JAMAL: Yes, but most of the

         20  people still want to leave it the way it is R4. How

         21  come on the two houses affected to R4A, and the

         22  whole block, the whole block is R4? I think the

         23  discrimination with those two houses in the whole

         24  block, that those two housed get rezoned to R4A, and

         25  the whole block is R4.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You sort of lost

          3  me.

          4                 MR. JAMAL: Okay. This whole block is

          5  a new proposed zoning. This whole block is R4.

          6  Except two houses at the corner of 153rd Street, and

          7  60th Avenue. Only two houses get affected. That's

          8  the whole block is R4.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see what you're

         10  saying. You can take your seat back here.

         11                 But the reason I asked you to look at

         12  the map is because I thought your testimony was to

         13  say that you support the R4A, which in fact --

         14                 MR. JAMAL: In worst case. In worst

         15  case.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In worst case.

         17                 MR. JAMAL: If we have no choices, we

         18  stay on R4. It's not my voice. I knock the door in

         19  December of like 30 people in my two blocks, and I

         20  didn't find one single person, believe it or not, I

         21  didn't find one single person. If you guys want to

         22  hear the voice of the people, I appreciate it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, your point

         24  was made. I asked for clarification. I got it. Let's

         25  not go into a whole another ten-minute testimony.
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          2                 With reference to your comment about

          3  the two houses on the end of the block, City

          4  Planning, when they look at these rezonings, tries

          5  to make a consistent zoning, not only with the

          6  character of the houses, but also the way the face.

          7  Do they face the street front, do they face the

          8  boulevard. In this case they drew a straight line,

          9  it looks like those two houses faced the boulevard,

         10  it was a consistent -- you're shaking your head, but

         11  they're shaking their head yes.

         12                 I mean, I'm giving you an

         13  explanation. It makes sense just looking at the map

         14  how they did it. You may disagree, but they had a

         15  particular logic in mind when they did it. I just

         16  wanted to explain that.

         17                 Okay, next speaker.

         18                 MS. SHEA: My name is Sarah Shea. I

         19  live at 146 11 Booth Memorial Avenue. I have only

         20  lived there ten years with my husband. My husband

         21  has owned the house for over 40 years. In the ten

         22  years that I have lived there, needless to say, I've

         23  seen a big change in the neighborhood.

         24                 On the corner of 146th Street and

         25  Booth Memorial Avenue, there was a home made into, I
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          2  would assume it's a one-family home, but they built

          3  back, and they kept it in the tudor style and no had

          4  any complaints with that. At the other end of the

          5  block, there is an apartment building that's a

          6  six-family house. In the middle of our block, there

          7  are now two buildings that are three families, three

          8  story high buildings. Behind my house is a

          9  three-family, three-story high building that looks

         10  into my windows.

         11                 I have four sons, I have five

         12  grandchildren. My husband and I are both close to

         13  retirement age but are not ready to retire, nor do

         14  we want to retire. And the reason I got up to speak

         15  is (a), I'm for R4A, which is what the City Planning

         16  Commission came to our area and basically agreed on,

         17  and I came up to speak because of Ms. Katz's

         18  question of what's the difference between the 3X and

         19  the R4A, and the difference is area. If you downzone

         20  my house to an R3X, my downstairs consists of a

         21  kitchen, a living room, and a dining room, so you

         22  would be allowing me only 50 percent space,

         23  additional space, that's the way they break it down,

         24  the FA, you either have 90 percent or 75, I would be

         25  able to build one bedroom and a bathroom on the
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          2  first floor, and then build up one bedroom, which

          3  wouldn't be a bedroom, it would have to be the

          4  kitchen, you're allowing me absolutely no space to

          5  live with my grandchildren or my son should I choose

          6  to. That's the difference between the 3X, we only

          7  have five percent space, and the 4A where you have,

          8  I'm not sure if it's 75 or 90 percent space. So,

          9  there is a big difference between 50 and 75 percent,

         10  so I say R4A. And the truth of the matter is, my

         11  husband, Mr. Wong, and a few other people, we're the

         12  ones who originally got notice of this that we were

         13  being downzoned, and it wasn't through our community

         14  board, and it was not through many ways that they

         15  have said it's been through. My husband has been a

         16  member of Queens Borough Hills for all these years,

         17  and no volunteer knocked on our door, and that's the

         18  God's honest truth. So, the reality is it's been

         19  lopsided and since I am only in the area ten years,

         20  I have seen the change of the area in ten years, and

         21  the change has definitely changed to a more Asian

         22  ethnic from the Irish, Norwegian, or as I said the

         23  trolls and Leprechauns that we were, and I do not

         24  believe that people were informed of what changes

         25  were happening to their property. And at least I was
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          2  glad to hear Council Member Liu and yourself say

          3  that that is something that needs to be addressed in

          4  our government. It's something that's been

          5  overlooked. But the truth is we were unaware this

          6  was taking place, and from November until this date,

          7  the 200 people that aren't all here but who did show

          8  up at Lang Auditorium, actually it was closer to 250

          9  people, got together very quickly to say, hey, look

         10  what you're doing to us, we have a voice. This is

         11  America.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         14                 If there is no one else signed up to

         15  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing.

         16  We will take a vote on this on Friday at 9:55 here

         17  in this room, which will be immediately followed by

         18  the Land Use Committee.

         19                 In the meantime, Council Member Liu

         20  and myself and the Land Use staff will discuss the

         21  testimony and its recommendations. We anticipate

         22  modifying this application, based upon his concerns

         23  and, of course, Council Member Gennaro's as well.

         24                 We will now move on to the next item,

         25  and I don't see the applicant here.
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          2                 Oh, I'm sorry.

          3                 Moving on to the next and last item,

          4  Land Use No. 368 through 371, commonly referred to

          5  as "the West 60th Street Project." An application

          6  submitted by West 60th Street Associates, LLC, and

          7  West End Properties, for an amendment of the zoning

          8  map, N 060103 ZRY. C060104 ZMM, C060105 ZSM, and

          9  C060106 ZSM.

         10                 And we have a representative of the

         11  applicant here, you're ready to go. You're making

         12  last-minute notes? You didn't make the notes the

         13  whole time?

         14                 MR. CANDREVA: Thank you. Good

         15  morning, Chair Avella, Land Use Chair Katz, Council

         16  Member Brewer, Council members, and ladies and

         17  gentlemen. My name is Jeremiah Candreva. I'm here to

         18  represent the applicant today on the Land Use

         19  matters related to the West 60th Street proposal.

         20  I'm pleased to report that the applicant has agreed

         21  to leadership of Council Member Brewer to undertake

         22  the following actions in connection with the

         23  project.

         24                 Number one, one of the applications

         25  is for a special permit for a public parking garage.
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          2  We've agreed to limit within the 200 space public

          3  parking garage 150 of those spaces to long-term

          4  accessory use. We would offer them for monthly

          5  parkers to the tenants of the building.

          6                 Second, we would like to propose and

          7  reach agreement on providing public access to the

          8  on-site tennis court to team members of the Beacon

          9  School Tennis Team and to elementary school students

         10  of PS 191, who are interested in tennis instruction

         11  and play time with their coach four days a week,

         12  from the hours of 2:30 to 5:30 under appropriate

         13  conditions to be worked out between the developer

         14  and Department of Education.

         15                 We are also pleased to note for the

         16  record that we have reached at least in concept and

         17  agreement with the Parks Department whereby we would

         18  make a contribution to the efforts to restore the

         19  bath house, or I'm sorry, pool house on West 60th

         20  Street.

         21                 Having said that, I think that I'm

         22  here to answer any questions that you have in

         23  connection with the rec center or anything else

         24  about the project.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. This has been a long process, but

          6  basically the applicant is, as you know, planning

          7  what we call a large scale development, which has

          8  certain connotation in the Zoning Code, and as a

          9  result there is an interest on the part of the

         10  development and the community that it be more

         11  interesting than a big tall tower. Again,

         12  layperson's terms. And, so, there is a large, there

         13  is a changing of how the project is configured in

         14  terms of the buildings, its rental and condo,

         15  unfortunately high-income, but that's my opinion,

         16  and it is also how ever well landscaped as part of

         17  the Zoning Code. So, in that landscaping is a tennis

         18  court, which those of us in the neighborhood were

         19  not happy about, but the accommodation of a

         20  2:30/5:30 to accommodate the school teams, turns out

         21  that one of the school teams is number one in the

         22  City, so they're very happy to have this

         23  opportunity. Hopefully, we'll work on the details

         24  between now and Friday, we would like it to be

         25  year-round, because it turns out that they are there
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          2  during the summer. So, that is positive, and

          3  hopefully will have lots of good connotation.

          4                 The Parks Department has had a

          5  recreation center across the street for many years,

          6  it's a WBPA building. Long story short, we have some

          7  money from government and other developers, but

          8  finishing it in terms of a new building and

          9  landscaping will be a big plus, and that will be

         10  part of this project, not part of the action today,

         11  but we'd love to have the lines clear by parks and

         12  the developers by Friday. And we're working to get

         13  letters signed.

         14                 And then just finally, of course, the

         15  issue of the garage I think has been worked out with

         16  as much accessory as the Community Board and the

         17  developer and I put together. So, that's kind of it

         18  in a nutshell. And we will work out some language on

         19  these issues between now -- there is also an issue

         20  about substantially landscape planted, as to what

         21  the landscaping would look like, and we'll work it

         22  out between now and Friday.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Any

         25  other questions?
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          2                 Thank you. Close the public hearing

          3  on this item, since there is obviously nobody in the

          4  room even to testify, and we will recess this

          5  meeting until Friday at 9:55.

          6                 MR. CANDREVA: Thank you.

          7                 (Hearing recessed at 12:20 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of February 2007.
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